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Financial Highlights

Revenue for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 increased by
17.0% from HK$2,376,904,000 to HK$2,781,222,000 as compared
with the last financial year.

Gross profit for this financial year increased by 75.0% from
HK$189,103,000 to HK$330,884,000.

Other income for this financial year decreased by 43.2% from
HK$122,379,000 to HK$69,500,000.

Selling, general and administration expenses for this financial year
decreased by 0.4% as compared with the same in the last financial
year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 March 2017 was HK$87,845,000 as compared with loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$32,328,000 recorded
for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company were
HK2.6 cents for this financial year as compared with HK1.1 cents

losses per share in the last financial year.

No dividend was declared for this financial year (2016: nil).
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Financial Highlights

Revenue ¥ %
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Financial Highlights

Financial Position: B AR
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Total Assets BERE 2,366,334 1,735,506
Total Liabilities BB 578,507 651,780
Net Assets BEFE 1,787,827 1,083,726
Net Tangible Worth BREEFE 1,581,184 877,005
Financial Ratios: =R -
2017 2016
—E2—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET AT
Gross profit margin EF= 11.9% 8.0%
Return on equity LS EIER =K 5.0% -3.1%
Current ratio MBI % 2.4 2.2
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 22.2% 45.1%
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Chairman’s Statement

2017 is going to be a year full of uncertainties and changes due
to the change of the US government, the Brexit process and the
increase of US interest rate. During the opening of the annual
National People’s Congress in Beijing on 5 March 2017, Premier Li
Kegiang mentioned that China is targeting a growth of 6.5% in 2017,
slightly lower than last year’s actual 6.7 percent rate, which is the
lowest in 26 years. On 16 January 2017, the International Monetary
Fund upgraded its growth forecast for China’s economy in 2017 to
6.5%, which is 0.3% points higher than their October forecast due
to the expectations for continued government stimulus. The fund
also forecasted that China’s economy would grow 6% in 2018,
which is in line with the October report.

During this financial year, the Group’s revenue increased from
HK$2.377 billion to HK$2.781 billion. Gross profit for the financial
year increased from HK$189.1 million to HK$330.9 million. The
automobile business was still a major income driver, accounting
for approximately 90.6% of our business. Net profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$87.8 million was
recorded in this financial year compared with a net loss of HK$32.3
million in the last financial year.

In view of the improved performance of our automobile segment
and the Group’s effective cost-cutting strategies during the financial
year under review, the Board estimated to record a profit and had
issued a positive profit alert and possible modification to audit
opinion announcement on 4 May 2017.

—E-EFRARRTAPRERREH —
FoDEXBEBANEE - ZEBBUER kX
TREEA -RZE—+F=ARBEILRE
TEEARKKRASHEDRR - TragER
B —E-tFPEERAER6.5% K
REFER67% (R TRFRKEELER) 2
B e R-F—tF—A+RA  BRE%E
S LR T FPREEERBAE
6.5% BEEF+ARASH0.3%  JHRETE
At B SR S B 5 o sxAB AR TR
—E-\EFPEEHERIERE%  BEFTA
BETE—H -

RABRFE AEEBEZKZEH
2,377,000,000 7 7T 3% Hn £ 2,781,000,000 /&
7T o NI E 2 EF B 189,100,000 74 7T 1%
HN% 330,900,000 7T  RBEBINAEEK
AR - G AREEEFL90.6%  REBFE
81578 1~ Rl A A FE (S 5 W47 87,800,000
B mME—RFERRGEEFE
32,300,000 7T °
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Chairman’s Statement

China’s Luxury Goods & Automobiles Markets

There are quite a few ongoing updates and research reports
from reputable authorities, investment banks and global research
houses mentioning the slowdown of China’s luxury goods market.
According to the “Luxury Goods Worldwide Market Study, Fall-
Winter 2016” issued by Bain & Company on 28 December
2016, China’s luxury market contracted to €17 billion in 2016,
representing a 2% decline. However, the market grew 4% at
constant exchange rates in 2016, the first sign of revitalization in
3 years. In China, consumers started buying again in their home
market, but that was not enough to offset a dip in purchases by
Chinese travelers abroad. A key factor in this shift is due to tighter
customs controls to limit foreign shopping in an effort to fight
the “grey market” of unauthorized sales and stimulate domestic
consumption. As a result, China’s overall share of global luxury
goods purchases declined slightly from 31% to 30 %. In the long
run, China still remains an engine of growth for luxury goods as the
country’s middle class continues to grow in size and purchasing
power. The behavior of Chinese consumers epitomizes a larger
global trend: the re-localization of luxury. In 2016, the growth of
local luxury purchases exceeded that of tourist purchases by 5%,
the first time that has happened since 2001. The report also reveals
online sales have shown especially strong growth in the personal
luxury goods market, increasing nearly 20-fold from 2003 to 2016,
to the current level of €19 billion (or 8% of the total). In 2016
alone, the market for online luxury goods grew 13%, significantly
outperforming the rest of the personal luxury goods market.
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Chairman’s Statement

According to a report titled “Global Powers of Luxury Goods” as
published by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, a multinational professional
services firm on 16 May 2017, reported that consumers in emerging
markets continue to drive luxury market growth. In China, Russia
and United Arab Emirates which markets were categorized as
emerging luxury markets, the percentage of consumers claiming
to have increased their spending stood at 70%, compared to
53% in the more mature markets including EU, US and Japan.
Mainland China continues to experience a slowdown in luxury
goods spending, with economic uncertainty dampening consumer
confidence and the central government‘s crackdown on luxury gifts
in the corporate sector continues to have an impact. Nevertheless,
demand remains steady among the country’s expanding middle
class, with their increasing disposable incomes, as they continue
to buy better quality products and showcase their social status.
In addition, as in other emerging markets, prices of luxury goods
in China are being adjusted downwards to bring them in line with
global markets. This is encouraging more Chinese consumers to
purchase luxury brands in their domestic market.

Despite the slowdown of the China luxury goods market, China
is still going to be the biggest luxury car market. According to an
article titled ‘German giants do battle in luxury sector” issued by
ChinaDaily.com.cn on 27 February 2017, premium car brands had
a bumper year in the country in 2016, with combined sales of the
top 10 marques reaching 2.18 million cars, a 17.15% surge year-
on-year. The three German giants — Audi, BMW and Mercedes-Benz
— consolidated their top-three positions in China’s premium car
market, accounting for 72.5% of the top 10 brands’ total sales.

RIEEE e BBER A ST (—RBRHHKE
REAFDR=ZE—tFRATSBEMZZ
BBl 2B &% 5 112 (Global Powers of Luxury
Goods)] #E - MERLIETIS 2 KB E &
BHEDECMmMBER - PE - B R
REEEREEMSHIBAFEESZRT
%5 T0% ) HEERTRENZZmEEE
KBz TRATS (BEHREA - B RH
R)EBEI%HHEERTB R - FEAM
BEESEZRIEBTE - MK THARARISS
HEBEEDL  PRBMITEEERXEZ S
MBEEKTE - ®REMOL - BAPERRT
Bt KX BEEREFR XBEWRAG I - REEE
BEBEEMABTEM G - REUEEZ
mAI B RIBE o IhoOh - REMITETS - R E
ZEmEBERTRANEHERRTSER 3
R E ZFBEEBERBANTISEEEZ

Anahg o

BEFEEZEZRMISERE - RRIDBKARA
HIZEEJTEMIS o R ChinaDaily.com.cn
TE+F AT tHBERNER[ERE
SEAE B (% 517 % (German giants do battle in
luxury sector)] BWERE + —E—RERIEEE
M RZ B R B F - +KmEHNE S
SEFN218EH - WAFREEA17.15% - 1=
FE-EH(RE BERFMZETERE
SEBEMBHERRI =M - (AT KAER
IR EBRE 2 72.5% ©
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Chairman’s Statement

Jake Lingeman, Road Test Editor at Autoweek, an American
fortnightly automotive enthusiast publication based in Detroit,
Michigan commented supercar sales have not slowed in China,
despite President Xi Jinping’s attack on conspicuous consumption
a few years back according to an article named “Luxury sales
skyrocket in China, despite austerity measures” issued on 20 April
2017. Jake also stated that China is expected to be the biggest
luxury-car market in two years. Additionally, supercar brands are
also positive towards the China luxury car market and recorded
doubled sales in the country in 2016 including Reid Bigland, head
of Fiat Chrysler Automobile’s Maserati and Alfa Romeo divisions.
Another supercar giant, Aston Martin said it would hit its target of
selling 270 cars in 2017 compared to 170 in 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Automobile Dealerships

During the year, revenue of the ultra-luxury automobile
distributorships of Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce recorded
an approximate 17.3% increase to HK$2.396 billion, compared
with HK$2.042 billion in the previous financial year. Of our 3
brands, Bentley and Rolls-Royce recorded sales grow while
Lamborghini recorded sales drop. Bentley had performed the best
among the Group’s other brands with total sales of approximately
HK$1.4 billion, representing a 24% increase in sales compared
with HK$1.125 billion during the previous financial year. A total of
385 units of Bentley were sold, representing an increase of 20%
compared with 322 in the corresponding financial year previously.
Among all models on sale of Bentley during the current financial
year, Flying Spur was recorded the most in both revenue and units
sold, while the new SUV model, Bentayga performed the best in
terms of gross profit contribution.

According to the articles titled “Gains in Europe and UK while
Americas remains biggest selling region” under Bentley official
website issued on 12 January 2017, Bentley Motors delivered
11,0283 cars in 2016, a record high and the company’s fourth
consecutive year about 10,000 cars. This represents a positive
percent growth on the performance of 2015 (10,100 cars). The
brilliant results were due to the launch of Bentley Bentayga, the
world’s first luxury SUV, which reached all global markets during
2016, played a key role in this success. The brand’s Chairman
and CEO, Wolfgang Durheimer is positive in the coming future
and mentioned the brand’s focus was to continue to invest in new
sector-defining luxury cars, innovative technologies and play a
leading role in defining the future of luxury mobility.

Rolls-Royce recorded a 14% increase in sales to HK$833.1 million
during this financial year, compared with HK$733.4 million in the
previous financial year. At the same time, a total of 149 units of
Rolls-Royce were sold, representing an increase of 18% compared
with 126 in the previous financial year. Among all models on sale of
Rolls-Royce during the current financial year, Ghost performed the
best in terms of revenue and gross profit contribution.

FR-EF BEERERLHRHEBERA
B9 8 2 W 8% 15 492,396,000,0007% TT
i = — B B E 49 5 2,042,000,000 78 7T+ 1
B4I17.3% c T =EmEZF - EF RS
ST HERAMER MBHERZH
BB TR  EAEEETEMRZ M
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#71,400,000,0008 7T 1 E—BBUFERI A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Lamborghini recorded a decline in sales during this financial year
with a total of HK$162.6 million, representation 11% drop compared
with that of HK$182.7 million recorded in the previous financial
year. A total of 42 units of Lamborghini were sold, representing an
increase of 5% compared with 40 in the corresponding financial
year previously. It was due to the decrease in sale of Aventador
but increase in sale of Huracan. Among all models on sale of
Lamborghini during the current financial year, Huracan performed
the best in terms of revenue and gross profit contribution.

Gross profit margins of sale of Bentley and Rolls-Royce improved
significantly, while the Group continued enjoying bonus from the
brands.

Revenue of after-sales services recorded a decline of 10% during
this financial year as compared with the previous financial year. A
slight increase in gross profit on after-sales services was recorded
in this financial year. Accordingly, the gross profit margin increased
from 46.6% to 52.2% in this financial year.

Watch Dealerships & Jewellery Distributorships

During the year, the sales of our super deluxe branded watch
division recorded a decline in revenue of approximately 6.1% to
approximately HK$106.2 million as compared with approximately
HK$113.1 million in the previous financial year. Among all models
on sale during the current financial year, Richard Mille’s RM011
performed the best in terms of revenue contribution.

Sales of top-tier branded jewellery division improved in terms of
both quantity and sales amount and recorded sales revenue of
HK$20.3 million as compared with HK$14.1 million in the last
financial year. Among all models on sale during the current financial
year, Boucheron’s QUATRE COLLECTION performed the best in
terms of revenue contribution.

314 units of watches and objects of time were sold in this financial
year compared with 194 pieces in the previous financial year.
Brands included Richard Mille, Parmigiani, DeWitt, DelaCour and
Buben & Zorweg.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F#i

HEERRAMINEERGHER TG - £5
#$162,600,000 % 7T + 8 = — BB 2 8115 48
£ 48%8182,700,0008 7T N 11% o &L 42
WEEERE R L —WREEE L 40HE
£ 5% » R H 2 Aventador $5 2 FB# i Huracan
REEER) EFA - TRAMRFEREL#EER
ERmBERES @ gilias REFMFRIME U
Huracan &I\ £ o

BN RGO EEMNRBANRE - MA
SEEESZmRET 2 -

RAFBREE @ EBRE 2 RER E—ERF
ETE10% - RABINFE 2 & 1% RIS EF B
AR - At - AMBFEZEFEH46.6%
FE52.2% °

fEk D 8 ) TR E U ER

RAFE  AEEBRRERERED 2 H
EUEE T B 416.1% £ 49106,200,000/8 7T * 1M
F—BBFEE 4975 113,100,0008 7T ° £
R RFERELOMBISES - stz a R
ifi & LA Richard Mille ) RM011 RIR &£ »

TERMEIRE B HE N B E RIHE RS
BRTHE - 8715946 W25 20,300,000 7T * 1M
F—BEFEE R A 14,100,000 7T ° FERAGE
ERELOmBESEES  BlEERIME N
Boucheronjfl N #)QUATRE COLLECTIONZIR

B®iE -

PR 5% 53 B Y 7N B B EF R L6 314 14 B 8k K
FHEFER M M E— B FEFE A A1941H5 - @
&8 1E Richard Mille » Parmigiani » DeWitt
DelaCour & Buben & Zorweg °



BERE W&k DT

Management Discussion and Analysis

527 pieces of jewellery division were sold during this financial year
compared with 419 pieces in the previous financial year. Brands
included Boucheron and Royal Asscher.

Gross profit margin of watch division declined during the current
financial year from 18.8% in the last financial year to 15.3% in the
current financial year while gross profit margin of jewellery division
decreased from 43.1% in the previous financial year to 34.5% in the
current financial year.

Among all the watches and jewellery brands under our Group,
Richard Mille performed the best in terms of revenue and gross
profit.

Others

During the current financial year, the sales performance of
this division performed satisfactorily with revenue recorded an
approximate 91.4% increase to approximately HK$135.6 million,
as compared with approximately HK$70.8 million in the previous
financial year. The huge growth was driven by sales of audio
equipment and menswear apparel and accessories.

Among all brands under this division including fine wine, audio
equipment, menswear apparel and accessories and tobacco
products, B&0O PLAY performed the best in term of revenue and
gross profit. Among all models on sale during the current financial
year, A9 and H5 of B&0O PLAY performed the best in terms of
revenue contribution.

%?"4BEA$HIEQ¢E/\E 527 3K E
P HRFERA R4 RIEBRE

Boucheron } Royal Asscher °

RABMBFE - Btk 2 B2 EFERH LK
FE218.8% NHREAMHBFE 2 15.3% * M
KREHE 2 ENER B E—MBFE2431%
TEREREBFE 2 34.5% °
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Richard Mille 2 Wz R EF KRR AL R -
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W25 12 R #991.4% E #7135,600,000 % 7T * 1M
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@J °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK$2,781.2 million, representing a increase of
approximately 17% as compared with approximately HK$2,376.9

million recorded in the last year. The increase was due to the

increase of the revenue generated from the automobile segment

after the launch of a new model of Bentley SUV, Bentayga as well

as significant improvement in sales of Rolls-Royce. The table below

sets out the Group’s revenue for the year indicated:

B 5 1ol R

W zs

(E_T—tF=ZA=+—HILFE  £~EE
Z W54 52,781,200,000/8 7T © BEFEE
2 #72,376,900,000 7 LI ANHI17% o Uz 15
MIyBERELFRRENESELRGRE
Bentaygaf + M L& ETAATSEEBRE WS - B
BUAE D E 2 W B FTiRA - TREIIAER
RETRFE 2 W

FY2017 FY2016 Changes
“E-tEHBEE - EHBEE %8
Contribution Contribution
Revenue Source K& KR HK$’000 (%) HK$'000 (%) HK$'000 %
TAT B (%) TATL B (%) AL %
Sales of automobiles REHE 2,395,631 86.1% 2,041,611 85.9% 354,020 17.3%
Income from provision of RUERRBZHA
after-sales services 128,550 4.5% 137,251 5.8% (13,701) (10.0%)
Sub-total INst 2,519,181 90.6% 2,178,862 91.7% 340,319 15.6%
Sales of branded watches BEMERGEHE
and jewelleries 126,469 4.5% 127,197 5.3% (728) (0.6%)
Others Hit 135,572 4,9% 70,845 3.0% 64,727 91.4%
TOTAL st 2,781,222 100% 2,376,904 100% 404,318 17.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017
increased by 75.0% to approximately HK$330.9 million (2016:
HK$189.1 million). The increase was mainly due to the increase in
the gross profit from sales of automobile and increase in bonus from
suppliers by in total of approximately 1.7 times; and the increase in
the gross profit from sales of audio equipments by 104%.

The gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2017 increased from 8.0% in the last financial year to 11.9%. Such
increase was mainly due to the increase in gross profit margin of
automobile business.

Other Income

Other income was HK$69.5 million for the year ended 31 March
2017, a 43.2% decrease from HK$122.4 million in the last
financial year. The decrease was mainly due to lack of sub-lease
rental income and consultancy and referral fee income during the
financial year. Also the bonus from suppliers for marketing purpose
decreased by approximately 45.9%.

Operating Expenses

The selling and distribution costs increased slightly by 1.9% while
administrative expenses reduced by 8.4%. The changes were mainly
due to the increase in marketing expenses, but reduced by decrease
in rental expenses and depreciation of the Group.

EMRENR
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£ F#E N 75.0% = %9 330,900,0008 T ( =&
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by 68.1% from HK$49.3 million to
HK$15.7 million. The decrease was mainly due to the substantial
reduction of borrowings and reduction of interest rates by the
People’s Bank of China during the financial year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2017 were approximately
HK$2,366.3 million (2016: HK$1,735.5 million) which were mainly
financed by the owners’ equity and total liabilities of approximately
HK$1,773.9 million (2016: HK$1,056.2 million) and HK$578.6
million (2016: HK$651.8 million) respectively.

Cash Flow

The Group’s bank balances and cash as of 31 March 2017 were
approximately HK$198.3 million (2016: HK$157.2 million) which
were mainly denominated in HK$ and Renminbi (‘RMB”).

The Group’s primary uses of cash are to repay the Group’s
borrowings, to pay for purchases of inventories and to fund the
Group’s working capital and normal operating costs. Such increase
was mainly attributable to the decrease in inventory level when
compared with the last financial year.

The Directors consider that the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its existing operations and financial resources for
financing future business expansion and capital expenditures.

Borrowings
The Group’s borrowings at 31 March 2017 were approximately

HK$396.4 million,
approximately HK$488.7 million at 31 March 2016. The decrease

representing a decrease of 18.9% from

was mainly due to substantial repayment of borrowings during the
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio computed as total borrowings over
the total equity decreased to 22.2% as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
45.1%).

Inventories

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s inventories decreased by 7.7%
from approximately HK$1,000.2 million as at 31 March 2016 to
HK$923.6 million, primarily due to the decrease in automobile and
watch and jewellery inventories which comprised approximately
60.1% and 24.5% of the inventories of the Group.

The Group’s average inventory turnover days decreased from 209
days in the year ended 31 March 2016 to 143 days in the year ended
31 March 2017, primarily due to decrease in average inventories
resulting from the improvement in the automobile retail market.

The average inventory turnover days mentioned above was defined
as average inventory over cost of sales multiplied by 365 days, and
the average inventory was the median value of the inventories as at
the year end of the current and previous financial years.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

The revenue and expenses of the Group are mainly denominated in
RMB and HK$ while the production cost and purchases are mainly
denominated in RMB, HK$, Euro (“‘EUR”) and Swiss Franc (“CHF”).

The Group did not enter into any foreign currency forward contract
for this financial year under review. As at 31 March 2017 and 2016,
the Group did not have any foreign currency forward contracts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

The Group did not have any significant capital commitment as at 31
March 2017 (2016: nil) in respect of acquisition of property, plant
and equipment. The board of Directors of the Company considered
that the Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2017 (2016: nil).

Charges on Assets

As at 31 March 2017, pledged deposits and inventories of the Group
with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately HK$72.2 million
(2016: HK$55.7 million) and approximately HK$335.6 million (2016:
HK$424.6 million) respectively were pledged to secure general
banking facilities and other facilities granted to the Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 493 (2016: 485) employees.
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) charged to profit or
loss amounted to approximately HK$45.6 million for the year (2016:
HK$44.1 million).

The Group provided benefits, which included basic salary,
commission, discretionary bonus, medical insurance and retirement
funds, for employees to sustain competitiveness of the Group.
The package was reviewed on an annual basis based on the
Group’s performance and employees’ performance appraisal.
The Group also provided training to the employees for their future
advancement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Material Acquisition

On 20 October 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with two entities controlled by Mr. Qi Jian Hong, namely
Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited (“SRHL”) and Beijing Sparkle Roll
Investment Limited* (“BJSRIL”),
has conditionally agreed to (i) acquire from SRHL approximately

pursuant to which the Group

15.09% of the total issued shares of B&O and (ii) acquire from
BJSRIL the remaining 49% equity interests in Balanorm Beo (Beijing)
Trading Development Limited. The consideration of the transaction
was settled by way of the Company issuing an aggregate of
approximately 1,161.4 million shares at HK$0.45 each to SRHL. The
transaction was completed on 16 December 2016. For the details
of the transaction please refer to announcements dated 20 October
2016, 13 December 2016, and 16 December 2016 and the circular
dated 24 November 2016.

RECENT DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECT

China’s luxury cars are making comeback in China. Super brands
including Ferrari, Aston Martin, Maserati, McLaren, Lamborghini and
Porsche are all cashing in on China’s big spenders as reported by
Bloomberg dated 20 April 2017. Our Group will set up a long term
exhibition site at Sanya, China by the end of 2017 for marketing
and promotion purpose. Through the operation of this exhibition
platform, the Group hopes to interact and engage with potential
customers to generate economic benefits in the upcoming financial
year. During the current financial year under review, our Group has
engaged in selling pre-owned cars. We will further develop such
business in the upcoming financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As mentioned in the Independent Auditor’s Report, our independent
auditor has expressed a qualified opinion in its auditor’s report
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2017. The Group has acquired 6,519,358 shares
of B&O by issuance of new shares. Upon completion, goodwill
on acquisition in the amount of HK$374.5 million was recorded
giving rise to an aggregate acquisition cost of HK$653.6 million.
That said the investment cost was approximately HK$100.3 per
share (approximately DKK89.1 per share). The market price of the
B&O share reached DKK96.5 on 31 March 2017 and DKK109.5
on 27 June 2017. The Group will closely monitor such substantial
investment.

On the other hand, in view of the significant investment in B&O and
the satisfactory performance of the B&O PLAY dealership business
in the PRC, audio equipment business will be one of the focuses to
the Group in the upcoming financial years.

Looking ahead, given the constant challenging environment of
the luxury goods market in the PRC, the Group is nonetheless
cautiously optimistic and committed to continue our leading roles in
the luxury goods market in the PRC. The Group continues to target
destocking of our non-auto inventory since it has been going well
with satisfactory progress especially in watch and jewelry segment
and we will continue to adopt a prudent, and, to a certain extent,
innovative approach to maintain a healthy level of inventory.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With a forecasted compound annual growth rate in double digits,
online retailing in China is expected to grow from 17% of total
retail sales in 2017 to 25% by 2020. China is the largest and most
innovative retail e-commerce market in the world according to a
report titled “eCommerce in China — the future is already here”
issued by PricewaterhouseCoopers. At the same time, China has
more e-commerce activities than any country in the world today.
China’s National Bureau of Statistics reported that online retail sales
in China grew 26% in 2016 to RMB5,155.6 billion, that is more
than 40% of all online sales around the world. The Group continues
to support in diversifying our e-commerce platform, “Sparkle Roll
Online” which gradually matures into an 020 platform, and widens
the product portfolio by the end of 2017 to provide better services
to our customers. We hope our e-commerce business will become
one of our main income drivers in the years ahead.
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Report of the Directors

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in distributorships of luxury goods. The
operations are mainly based in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC”) and Malaysia. Details of the principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, including the Group’s
segmental analysis, the important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of 31 March 2017 and the likely
future developments, is set out in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this Annual
Report.

Details about the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
is set out in the Risk Management and Internal Controls section of
the Corporate Governance Report.

Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: nil), while no interim dividend
(2016: nil) had been distributed during the year. This would be in
the best interest of the Group because particularly, the turnaround
of the profitability is at a relatively early stage and certain economic
uncertainties remain. However, the Directors recognise the
importance of dividends to Shareholders and will keep the matter
under review.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.
The Scheme was expired on 6 October 2012.
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Report of the Directors

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an annual general
meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012, the Company’s
new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted and
the Scheme was terminated. The New Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of ten years commencing on 20 August 2012.
There are approximately 5 years remaining life of the New Scheme.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the New Scheme as at 31 March 2017 was
297,982,885 shares (including options for nil share that have been
granted but not yet lapsed or exercised), representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2017.

The Company operates the New Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s business. Eligible
participants of the New Scheme include any director (including
Executive, Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors), any employee, or any consultant, advisor, customer and
business associates.

There was no outstanding share to be issued under the New
Scheme as at 31 March 2017 (as at 31 March 2016: nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the largest and the top five
suppliers of the Group accounted for 59.3% and 98.9% of the
Group’s total purchases respectively. The largest and the top five
customers of the Group accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s
total revenue.

At no time during the year under review did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest suppliers or customers for the year.
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Report of the Directors

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 91 and 92.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 97 and note 39(b) to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In addition to retained profits, under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is also available
for distribution to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution, out of contributed
surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, the distributable reserve accounts

comprise the reserves of the Company of approximately
HK$8,688,000 in deficit (2016: HK$10,471,000 in surplus).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2017 are set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 192
of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follow:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tong Kai Lap
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Zhu Lei

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gao Yu

Mr. Qi Jian Wei

Mr. Zhang Si Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor
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Report of the Directors

In accordance with bye-law no. 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of Members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

In accordance with bye-law no. 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years and are
eligible for re-election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each Independent Non-executive Director is
for the period of two years and renewable for one year up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with code provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), serving more than 9 years could be relevant to
the determination of a Non-executive Director’s independence. If
an Independent Non-executive Director serves more than 9 years,
his further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. The papers to shareholders
accompanying that resolution should include the reasons why the
board believes he is still independent and should be re-elected.

In accordance with bye-law no. 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, Mr. Gao Yu and Mr. Qi Jian Wei will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, for re-election. In addition, as
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong have served
the Company for more than nine years, their appointments will be
subject to separate resolutions to be approved by shareholders at
the AGM.

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

The biographical details of directors and senior management are set
out on pages 62 to 71.
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Report of the Directors

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Except as disclosed in note 34 and elsewhere in the financial
statements, there are no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company disclosed
that no directors of the Company is considered to have interests in
any business which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with the
business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the bye-law no. 168(1) of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
the directors, secretary or other officers of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all losses or damages which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office,
or otherwise in relation thereto.
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Report of the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors and/or the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required
to be (i) notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (ii) as recorded in the register required to be maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company

Name of director

BEEgR

Capacity
=37

Mr. Tong Kai Lap

BRI A 2REEFEAISZA (PHEE1)
Beneficial owner
ERBEAA

Subtotal NEF

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang Beneficial owner

EETI A ERERA

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo Beneficial owner

HERRELE BEaEBAA

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor Beneficial owner

PR A ERERA
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Founder of discretionary trust (Note 1)
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R/ S&mITBRABRAR R RE A LR
(EERBHFEBEGO(EHRIEKRD])
EXVE) 2Rk - ARG REHPES ()R
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Tz @ MR BIT

RAERFRS - HRAROREFZ2HFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares held interest
BEROHE BN EDL

(Note 2)

(Mt3E2)

10,274,400 0.24%
9,760,000 0.24%
20,034,400 0.48%
10,640,000 0.25%
1,000,000 0.02%
1,256,000 0.03%
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Report of the Directors

Notes:

(1)  These 10,274,400 shares were held by Rapid Alert International Limited,
a company controlled by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Tong is the
founder. Accordingly, Mr. Tong was deemed to be interested in these
shares.

(2)  The denominator used is 4,141,237,447 shares, being the total number
of shares in issue as at 31 March 2017.

SHARE OPTIONS

The New Scheme was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at a general meeting of the Company held on 20 August
2012.

(1) % F10,274,400 K B H A E LA B AL
AZ BRIELES Z A 7 Rapid Alert
International Limited 3§78 © Et - B L AEHR
BRZERNDPRAER -

@ AN RA4,141,237 447 B - IR F
—tF=A=+-RAZEBITRN A -

BRE

FETEREBARAR —_E——F\A=-+H
BITZBERAE LBBZ EBREREMN -
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Report of the Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF

THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2017, the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than a director
or chief executive of the Company, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company:

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Name of shareholder

RR#EE/£8

Substantial shareholders

TERR

Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited (“SRHL”)
BHRERERAR ([BHER])

Mr. Qi Jian Hong (‘Mr. Qi")
FROEHE([R%EE])

Ms. Zhu Shuang (“Ms. Zhu”)

KL ([R&L])

Street Smart Properties Limited
(“Street Smart”)

Street Smart Properties Limited
([ Street Smart )

Mr. Wang Qiang (“Mr. Wang’)

FaEE(ERED

Ms. Gao Hong (“Ms. Gao”)
izt (laxtl)

Z AR RO R
RAEARRDREERGD ZFR
Number of
Capacity shares
EL) REEE
Beneficial owner 2,320,753,630
ERBAA
Beneficial owner 7,224,000
ERBAA
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 2,320,753,630

=R R (1)
Interest of spouse (Note 1)
BB (FE)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

EafAA(ME2)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)
EREAAT2)

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
EHEE R (M 2)

Interest of spouse (Note 2)

i@ (fat2)
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2,327,977,630

316,280,000

18,982,000

316,280,000

335,262,000

FERRRAQT RS KARERKRSD
Z e

RIZB—tF=A=1+—H  BRERXFREZE
7 R B GGIF 336 R REFEZ B LA
T BARBEEHIESTRAESN - THIK
REMEARRRRERARNR BN MR

Approximate
percentage of
interest

EsfOEL
(Note 3)

GEX)

56.04%

0.17%

56.04%

56.21%

7.63%

0.46%

7.63%

8.09%
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Report of the Directors

Notes:

(1) These 2,320,753,630 Shares were held by SRHL. SRHL is a company
wholly owned by Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Mr. Qi was deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by SRHL. Ms. Zhu is the wife of Mr. Qi.
Accordingly, Ms. Zhu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
SRHL and Mr. Qi.

(2)  These 316,280,000 shares were held by Street Smart. Street Smart
is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wang. Accordingly, Mr. Wang was
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Street Smart. Ms. Gao
is the wife of Mr. Wang. Accordingly, Ms. Gao was deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Street Smart and Mr. Wang.

(3)  The denominator used is 4,141,237,447 shares, being the total number
of shares in issue as at 31 March 2017.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company, fellow
subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Wi -

(1)  #%%2,320,753,630 f& i 10 BRI AF A -
BRERE—MREEE2EEFZAF
Eitt - BEERBARBRRIERAZTEZR
MR KL LTAEREZET
bt R T HR AR R HIE R R B S TS
BB EEERS -

()  #%%316,280,000 % i 15 £ Street Smart#¥
A o Street Smart A— BT EE2EREZ
AR o Bt - EREWIR AP Street Smart AT
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ZF Bt - L TR RH Street Smart &
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Report of the Directors

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorization of the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting each year. The emoluments
of the executive Directors are subject to review by the Remuneration
Committee, and their remuneration is determined with reference
to the Directors’ qualifications, experience, duties, responsibilities,
performance, results of the Group and comparable market
information.

The Company has adopted the New Scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible participants.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the completeness
and accuracy of disclosures of continuing connected transactions
(“CCT”) and the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules in
respect of such transactions.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company had
reviewed all CCT as shown on pages 32 to 40 and confirmed in this
annual report and accounts that the transactions have been entered
into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms; and
(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

BDO Limited, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. BDO Limited has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules and confirmed that:

(@) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the board of the Company;

(b) for transactions involving the provision of services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

() nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(d) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the relevant annual caps as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Showroom Rental Agreement

On 31 December 2010, Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading
Development Limited (“TJXC”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a showroom rental agreement
(the“Showroom Rental Agreement”) with Mr. Qi, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, for a term commencing from 1
January 2011 to 31 December 2013, in respect of the office rental,
management fees and office expenses in relation to a showroom
and office of a gross floor area of approximately 365 square metres
at Zeng No. 4, No. 162 Zhang Zi Zhong Road, Heping District,
Tianjin, the PRC and subject to an annual cap of RMB2,640,000.

A supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) was
entered into between TJXC and Mr. Qi dated 30 June 2011 for
extension of the duration of the Showroom Rental Agreement from
its original terms of 3 years from 1 January 2011 inclusive to 10
years from 1 January 2011 inclusive.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the total rental charge paid
by TJXC to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB2,640,000 or approximately
HK$3,082,000.

Beijing Leasing Agreement |

On 30 June 2011,
Development Limited (“SRXTD”), an indirect wholly-owned

Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce

subsidiary of the Company, entered into a lease agreement (the
“Beijing Leasing Agreement 1”) with Mr. Qi, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, for a 10-year term from 1 July 2011 to 30 June
2021, for leasing a portion of warehouse for exhibition purpose, of
a portion of warehouse having a gross floor area of approximately
2,150 square metres at portions of Basement Level 1 of Towers A
and B, International Wonderland No. 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li
Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Beijing Leasing Agreement | (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the total rental charge paid
by SRXTD to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB2,400,000 or approximately
HK$2,802,000.

An agreement was entered into between SRXTD and Sparkle Roll
Retail Net Development Limited (“SRRND”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to
which the tenant of the Beijing Leasing Agreement | was transferred
from SRXTD to SRRND, with the same agreement terms.

An amended Beijing Leasing Agreement | was entered into among
SRXTD, SRRND and Mr. Qi under which portions of Basement Level
1 of Tower B, International Wonderland No. 40 Xing Fu Eu Chun,
San Li Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC were surrendered to
Mr. Qi (with no liability on the part of SRRND and SRXTD) with effect
from 1 July 2013. The lease in respect of the retained portion would
continue under the same terms save for rental reduction on account
of the partial surrender.

Beijing Leasing Agreement Il

On 30 June 2011, Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Trading Limited
(“BJMH"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a lease agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement II”)
with Mr. Qi, a substantial shareholder of the Company, for a 10-year
term from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for leasing a showroom for
luxury automobiles dealership business, of a portion of showroom
having a gross floor area of approximately 1,135 square metres at
portions of Level 1 of Tower A, International Wonderland No. 40 Xing
Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the total rental charge paid by
BJMH to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB11,040,000 or approximately
HK$12,890,000.

An agreement was entered into between BUJMH and SRRND, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July
2011 pursuant to which the tenant of the Beijing Leasing Agreement
II' was transferred from BJMH to SRRND, with the same agreement
terms.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Beijing Leasing Agreement IlI

On 30 June 2011, Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading
Development Limited (“SROBJ”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a lease agreement
(the “Beijing Leasing Agreement IlI”) with Mr. Qi, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, for a 10-year term from 1 July 2011 to
30 June 2021, for leasing a showroom for distribution of fine wines,
watches and jewelleries, of a portion of showroom having a gross
floor area of approximately 2,148 square metres at portions of Level
1 and 2 of Tower A, International Wonderland No. 40 Xing Fu Er
Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the total rental charge paid by
SROBJ to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB13,560,000 or approximately
HK$15,832,000.

An agreement was entered into between SROBJ and SRRND,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011
pursuant to which the tenant of the Beijing Leasing Agreement Il
was transferred from SROBJ to SRRND, with the same agreement
terms.

Beijing Leasing Agreement IV

On 30 June 2011, Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited (“BJDT”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
lease agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement IV”) with Mr. Qi, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, for a 10-year term from 1
July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for leasing an office, of a portion of office
having a gross floor area of approximately 1,280 square metres at
Level 3 of Tower A and portion of Level 7 of Tower B, International
Wonderland No.40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the total rental charge paid
by BJDT to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB4,560,000 or approximately
HK$5,324,000.

An agreement was entered into between BJDT and SRRND, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant
to which the tenant of the Beijing Leasing Agreement IV was
transferred from BJDT to SRRND, with the same agreement terms.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Beijing Leasing Agreement V

On 26 June 2013, SRRND, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a lease agreement (the “Beijing
Leasing Agreement V") with Mr. Qi, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2023, for
leasing a showroom for luxury automobiles dealership, of a portion
of showroom having a gross floor area of approximately 1,429.2
square metres at portions of Levels 1 and 2 of Tower B, International
Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the total rental charge paid by
SRRND to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB13,200,000 or approximately
HK$15,412,000.

Beijing Leasing Agreement VI

On 26 June 2013, SRRND, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a lease agreement (the “Beijing
Leasing Agreement VI”) with Mr. Qi, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2023, for
leasing an office, of a portion of office having a gross floor area of
approximately 840 square metres at portions of Level 3 of Tower
B, International Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the total rental charge paid by
SRRND to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB3,360,000 or approximately
HK$3,923,000.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Tianjin Leasing Agreement |

On 30 June 2011, Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading Development
Limited (“TJHY”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a lease agreement (the “Tianjin Leasing
Agreement I”) with Mr. Qi, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021,
for leasing a showroom for luxury automobiles dealership, having a
gross floor area of approximately 366.13 square metres at Zeng No.
2 and Zeng No. 3, No. 162 Zhang Zi Zhong Road, Heping District,
Tianjin, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the total rental charge paid
by TJHY to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB3,000,000 or approximately
HK$3,503,000.

An agreement was entered into between TJHY and SRRND, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to
which the tenant of the Tianjin Leasing Agreement | was transferred
from TJHY to SRRND, with the same agreement terms.

Tianjin Leasing Agreement Il

On 30 June 2011, TJXC, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a lease agreement (the “Tianjin Leasing
Agreement II”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021,
for leasing a showroom for distribution of fine wines, watches and
jewelleries, of a portion of showroom having a gross floor area
of approximately 949.80 square metres at Commercial Units No.
2-201 and No. 2-202, No. 162 Zhang Zi Zhong Road, Heping
District, Tianjin, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the total rental charge paid
by TJXC to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB2,880,000 or approximately
HK$3,363,000.

An agreement was entered into between TJXC and SRRND, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to
which the tenant of the Tianjin Leasing Agreement Il was transferred
from TJXC to SRRND, with the same agreement terms. The
agreement was early terminated on 31 December 2016.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Management Agreement

On 12 May 2014, SRXTD, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a management agreement (the
“Management Agreement”) with Beijing Sparkle Roll Golden Bond
Liquor Ltd. (“BJSRGB”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr.
Qi, a substantial shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which
SRXTD agreed to provide management services to BUSRGB for a
term of two years and eleven months commencing from 1 May 2014
and up to 31 March 2017.

As stipulated in the Management Agreement, SRXTD shall be
entitled to receive a management fee from BJSRGB calculated as
follows:

(i) For each financial year where the total revenue of
BJSRGB is RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$251,400,000) or below, management fee receivable
by SRXTD shall be equivalent to 2% of the total revenue
generated in that financial year.

(i) For each financial year where the total revenue of BJSRGB
is over RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$251,400,000), management fee receivable by SRXTD
shall be equivalent to (a) 2% of the first RMB200,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$251,400,000) of the total
revenue generated in that year; and (b) 3% of the remaining
balance of the total revenue over that initial RMB200,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$251,400,000) referred to in
(a) above generated in that year.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the total management fee
receivable by SRXTD amounted to RMB1,009,000 or approximately
HK$1,160,000.

On 30 March 2017, the Company renewed the management
agreement with BJSRGB which became effective for the period from
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 (the “New Management Agreement”).
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Management Agreement (Continued)

As stipulated in the New Management Agreement, SRXTD shall be
entitled to receive a management fee from BJSRGB calculated as
follows:

(i) For each financial year where the total revenue of BJSRGB
is RMB50,000,000 or below, management fee receivable
by SRXTD shall be equivalent to 2% of the total revenue
generated in that financial year.

(i) For each financial year where the total revenue of BJSRGB is
over RMB50,000,000, management fee receivable by SRXTD
shall be equivalent to (a) 2% of the first RMB50,000,000
of the total revenue generated in that year; and (b) 3% of
the remaining balance of the total revenue over that initial
RMB50,000,000 referred to in (a) above generated in that year.
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Report of the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the transaction described
below was entered into between the Company and its connected
person (as defined in the Listing Rules).

Acquisition of 6,519,358 shares of Bang & Olufsen A/S and
49% of the paid up capital of Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading
Development Limited

On 20 October 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with two entities controlled by Mr. Qi, namely Sparkle
Roll Holdings Limited (“SRHL”) and Beijing Sparkle Roll Investment
Limited” (“BJSRIL”"), pursuant to which the Group has conditionally
agreed to (i) acquire from SRHL approximately 15.09% of the total
issued shares of Bang & Olufsen A/S (“B&0”) and (ii) acquire from
BJSRIL the remaining 49% equity interests in Balanorm Beo (Beijing)
Trading Development Limited* (“Balanorm Beo”). The consideration
of the transaction was settled by way of the Company issuing an
aggregate of 1,161,408,597 shares at HK$0.45 each to SRHL,
amounting to HK$522,634,000. The transaction was completed on
16 December 2016. For the details of the transactions please refer
to announcements dated 20 October 2016, 13 December 2016 and
16 December 2016 and the circular dated 24 November 2016.

*

For identification purpose only

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into certain transactions with
parties regarded as related parties under the applicable accounting
standards. A summary of the related party transactions entered into
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2017 is contained
in Note 34 to the financial statements of this report including
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements, to the
extent they are not exempted or waived by the Stock Exchange, in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to
the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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Report of the Directors

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2017.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
audited by BDO Limited (“BDQ”). There has been no change of
auditor in the preceding three years.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the
Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Group recognises the importance of environmental protection
and has adopted relevant measures for environmental protection
in order to ensure the compliance by the Group of the prevailing
environmental protection laws and regulations. Details of the
environmental policies and performance of the Group are set out in
the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
on page 72 to 82 in this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company itself is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and the operations of the Group are mainly carried
out by its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, the PRC and Malaysia. Our
operations shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, China and Malaysia. During the year ended 31 March 2017
and up to the date of this report, we have complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, China and Malaysia.
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Report of the Directors

CORPORATE GOVERANCE

The Company had complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017. Details of the corporate
governance of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on page 44 to 61 in this Annual
Report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
held at 4:30 p.m. on 6 September 2017 (Wednesday) at Regus,
Conference Centre, 35/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong and a notice of annual general meeting will be
published and despatched in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 5
September 2017 (Tuesday) to 6 September 2017 (Wednesday)
(both days inclusive) during which period, no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all share transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 4
September 2017 (Monday).

On behalf of the Board

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. The board of Directors of the Company
(the “Board”) agrees that corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting investor
confidence. Corporate governance requirements keep changing,
therefore the Board reviews its corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure that all practices can be met with legal
and statutory requirements. Throughout the financial year ended
31 March 2017, the Group has adopted the principles and code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has been in compliance with the Code
throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to govern securities
transactions by the Directors. After having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code during the year and up to the date of this report.

The Company also adopted the Model Code as guidelines for
its relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company in respect of
their dealings in securities of the Company. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the relevant employees was noted
by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three Executive, three Non-executive
and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Tong Kai Lap (Chairman)
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Lei

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Si Jian
Mr. Gao Yu
Mr. Qi Jian Wei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

The biographical details are set out in the “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” section.

The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors,
representing one-third of the Board. At least one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All the Independent Non-executive
Directors have signed the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to confirm their
independence.

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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The Board’s primary responsibilities are to determine the overall
strategies, monitor and control operating and financial performance
and set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Groups’ strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are
those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts
and major investments. Day-to-day management of the Group’s
business is delegated to the Executive Director or officer in charge
of each department. The functions and power that are so delegated
are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
performance, status and updates on the latest developments in
order to enable the Directors to discharge their duties. All Directors
have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense upon their request.

During the year under review, Mr. Zhu Lei, Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang,
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong and Mr. Zhang Si Jian retired and were re-
elected as the Directors at the annual general meeting held on 8
September 2016.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Group has a clear division of responsibilities for its top
management and separates leadership structure where the role
of Chairman is segregated from that of Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Tong Kai Lap is the Chairman and is responsible for providing
leadership for the Board, ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established and that the Board acts in
the best interests of the Company. Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang is the Chief
Executive Officer and is responsible for the day-to-day business of
the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently six Non-executive Directors of whom three are
independent. Each of the Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment for
a term of two years and then renewable for one year. Under the Bye-
laws of the Company, every Director, including the Non-executive
and Independent Non-executive Directors, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least every three years.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Pursuant to the code provision A.4.3 of the Code, serving more than
9 years could be relevant to the determination of a Non-executive
Directors’ independence. If an Independent Non-executive Director
serves more than 9 years, his further appointment should be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. The
circular to shareholders accompanying that resolution will include
the reasons why the Board believes he is still independent and
should be re-elected.
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE SRRHEERER

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating EFE@THRTERGAANER 2B RKEE
performance of the Group and approve business plan. 7 Board %8 @ URHEZEKEE - RZF—X~E,/ =
meetings were held in 2016/2017. Individual attendance of each ZT—+HFHBIFT7AEEEEH - N_T—X

Director at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings, %,/ —ZT—+ % GLEELHFEET=LH
Remuneration Committee meetings and Nomination Committee BTEZLZE@@#% FHEESSHENIEREE

meeting during 2016/2017 and the annual general meeting of the @@ZNARFR _ZT—NFNLANBEITZ
Company held on 8 September 2016 (2016 AGM”) is set out below: MREBAFAE ([ ZZE—NFERRAFAE])
ZIERENIAT

Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERE, EBAY
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee 2016 AGM

“B-RE
Director S Exe ENZEE ¥Mzeg REZEE® RRBEFAS
Executive Director HITEE
Mr. Tong Kai Lap ERIEE N/A N/A
777 TEA 1/1 AiEH 1/1
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang Ely b N/A N/A
177 NiEf 1/1 N 1/1
Mr. Zhu Lei REEE N/A N/A N/A
717 @R TNEH ER 1/1
Non-executive Director j’/-bf)? TEZE
Mr. Zhang Si Jian REREL N/A N/A N/A
/7 @A TEH TEm 0/1
Mr. Qi Jian Wei BRERE N/A N/A N/A
717 @R TNEH ER 0/1
Mr. Gao Yu BREE N/A N/A N/A
717 TEm ~ER TEm 01
Independent Non-executive Director ~ BUHH7TEE
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo ZEREAE
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (BEZEEFR) 717 2/2 1 11 11
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (Chairman of MBI &% 4
the Remuneration Committee) (FHZEE+E) 717 2/2 il 11 1
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor (Chairman of 8K %4
the Nomination Committes) (BEZE8FE) 717 2/2 17 11 0/1
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8 ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F#i



JJ:% 3Fb?(|:|

Corporate Governance Report

Board and committee minutes are recorded in appropriate detail.
Draft minutes are circulated to Directors for comments within
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for
Directors’ inspection.

INDUCTION, DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
OF DIRECTORS

Every Board member has received a guidance book on Directors’
duties and liabilities upon joining the Group, which also lays down
the guidelines on conduct for the Board and Board committee
members and other key governance issues, including but not limited
to Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations
that they are required to observe during their service in the Board.
The updated guidelines will be provided from time to time as and
when appropriate.

A formal and tailored induction programme will be arranged for each
new Director, which includes a briefing on the Group’s structure,
businesses and governance practices by the senior management.
To seek continuous improvement, the Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training sessions, particularly on corporate ethics
and integrity matters, risk management, and relevant new laws and
regulations, from time to time.

ExehkBeggx
SHRLHERNER
BSESUH > MEETE

MBI T EEHRRG -
B2 ARBERZR
WAREEEN -

ESEH > RERKE

BREFSGNENNBERAEBRGSWE —1H
EERGMETESTFMN  ARSEEFER
EXZBeRBZRTHRSINRAEMGEIRZE R
FH - BRETRREFERFEESERR
BEFESZEMNETZ —ERER - KRR
KRB - B 25| BB E B IR TR 1R
o

BERMITESHELHEREABHER
BRESAEEABBNAEERE  XBHR
ERER - BRBHERE  AKERBESD
fTH [z ERAEIIRE  LERBRALE
BRENHERE  BREERLBEIERNR
PlzAR °
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To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant and in compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the
Code, the Company shall arrange and fund suitable training for
Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During
the year under review, the Directors participated in the kinds of

training as follows:

REREFHENEZSFLABRIEEE
Bt W FRIZFRAMRXEABSG AR
AR R R B TESRETEEE) - AER
KEHEMB NG - REABEFR > EFE2
B SREIEANT

Director Kind of Training
2= EHlER
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tong Kai Lap (Chairman) RN () A B
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang ByE T

(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (BILEFITEARE) A B
Mr. Zhu Lei KREFLE A B
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Mr. Zhang Si Jian REBE A A, B
Mr. Gao Yu BEEE A, B
Mr. Qi Jian Wei ZREERE A B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIHTEE
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo B Ae L A, B
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong MEE & A, B
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor TEREE A, B
A: Reading materials on legal and regulatory updates. A BREZERMREESHENZED -

B:  Attending training seminar organised by The Hong Kong Institute B: HEREESEFSSRN ZHIIELE - =&
AEBEBNSEER EMARES 2 AHER -

of Directors relating to disclosure of inside information and crisis
management for listed company directors.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Based on the business needs of the Group, the Nomination
Committee has recommended and the Board has adopted the
following measurable objectives:

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall be Non-
executive Directors or Independent Non-executive Directors;

(i)  a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have attained
bachelor’s degree or above;

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(iv) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have China-
related work experience.

The Nomination Committee shall monitor the implementation of the
board diversity policy and review the progress of its measurable
objectives from time to time. Based on its review, the Nomination
Committee considers that the current Board is well-balanced and
of a diverse mix appropriate for the business development of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties and has adopted a written guideline on corporate governance
functions in compliance with the Code.

The duties of the Board in respect of corporate governance
functions are summarised as follows:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
as set out in the Code and its disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board reviewed and monitored the training
of the Directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company established the Remuneration
Committee in March 2005. The principal role of the Remuneration
Committee is to exercise the power of the Board to determine
and review the remuneration package of individual directors and
key executives, including salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind,
considering factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and key executive, employments conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance based remuneration
so as to align management incentives with shareholders’ interests.
The Remuneration Committee is also considering all relevant
remuneration data and market conditions in addition to considering
the performance and responsibility of individual directors and
officers by linking their compensation with performance and
will measure it against corporate goals. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the remuneration
package of the Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about its proposals
relating to remuneration of Executive Directors and have access
to professional advice if considered necessary. After reviewing
all relevant information, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F#i

(i) BENERAQARETEAEREERT
ZBERRER

(iv) FEBIAR BB T RIS Z 57 RIRSTIA
RERCEERMEZHEBEREZAR

B e

RER EFGCEHNREREEZHIAR
ARRBTEEMNGEERECBREER

FMEES

REBETRIZHRE  ARRAR_ZETRF=AK
VHMNEEE - FMEE S T ZBERITE
EFEeR) BEREMENEFERERITR
AEFBHES (BEHF  EANEDHR)
VEEREENTETHRAEBMEAZKER
BE  AEEEGBSZEBAGN - URER
Rz HMRESARE  UNEREZ £
B EERZ M @mEERES - R ERNES R
BARBE s KR AMEBBEERREZRAR
BEIN  ZHEZERIEERAAEBEHMEK
BRMISHAN  TEUACEARERAER
o FR - FHEZESCERMAMENTES
EERERABZHIMAS -

FMZBeeRENRTES  HMEL 22
BRAARREFER,/ RTREHZER X
ARERERHREXER - REHMEEE
BRE R EGCHEERSREEAR
ZEFHRMEESREHERER -



SREARE

Corporate Governance Report

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors and two executive Directors. Its present

members are:

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong — Chairman

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

Executive Director

Mr. Tong Kai Lap
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting in 2016/2017
to review and approve directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration. The directors’ fee paid to the Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to annual review
and approval by the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments of
each of the Directors of the Company for 2016/2017 are set out in

note 12 to the financial statements.

Below is a summary of principal work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during 2016/2017:

° Review of the remuneration of Executive Directors and senior

management and approval of the same.

° Review of the remuneration of Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors), with

recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review the existing share option scheme with recommendations

to the Board for approval.
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The annual remuneration of the members of the current senior
managements of the Group by band is set out below:

Emoluments Band

i < 48 5l

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000
T # L ZE 1,000,00078 7T
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000
1,000,000 7T & 1,500,000 % 7T

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 6 October 2008
and comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED”),
namely, Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor (chairman of the Nomination and
Committee), Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board member, assessing the independence of INED; and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer.

The Nomination Committee has adopted written nomination
procedures specifying the process and criteria for selection of
candidates for directorship of the Company. The Nomination
Committee shall, based on criteria such as skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations, identify and recommend the
proposed candidate to the Board for approval of appointment.

All Non-executive Directors and INED are appointed for a specific
term of two years and renewable for additional one year, and are
required to retire and eligible for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company in every three years in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting in 2016/2017. Below is a
summary of principal work performed by the Nomination Committee
during 2016/2017:

° Recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors.

° Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the Board Committee.

° Assessment and confirmation of the independence of the INED
according to the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls and discussing with the external auditor for the nature and
scope of audit. Written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were formulated and adopted in March 2005.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director. Its present members are:

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo — Chairman
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, has
appropriate professional qualification in accounting and extensive
experience in accounting and auditing matters. Senior management
and external auditor shall normally attend the meetings. The Audit
Committee held 2 meetings in 2016/2017 with representatives from
BDO Limited, the external auditor of the Company, for the purpose
of discharging the aforesaid duties.
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Below is a summary of principal work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2016/2017:

° Review of annual financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2016 and interim financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2016, with
recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review and approval of the engagement letters of BDO
Limited, the nature and scope of the audit and their reporting
obligations.

° Review of internal controls and risk management systems of
the Group.

° Review reports from BDO Limited to Audit Committee.

o Review of connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) carried out during the year.

° Review of financial budget of the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2017
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Each year, the auditor is appointed by resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company and the Directors are authorised to
fix the remunerations for the auditing services.

The fee paid/payable to our auditor for annual audit for the year
ended 31 March 2017 amounted to approximately HK$1.37 million
(2016: HK$1.24 million).
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The auditor has performed other non-auditing services during the
year with aggregate service fee of approximately HK$1.23 million
(2016: HK$0.31 million). Non-auditing services include mainly
issuance of an accountant’s report for a major and connected
transaction of the Group, review of interim financial statements of
the Group and review over continuing connected transactions of the
Group. The Audit Committee has considered based on the policy
developed by them in this regard and made recommendations to the
Board for these non-auditing services conducted by our auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board and Board committees
by ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary also
plays an essential role in the relationship between the Company
and its shareholders, and facilitates induction and professional
development of directors.

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making
decisions. The Company Secretary also advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests in securities, connected
transactions and inside information and ensures that the standards
and disclosures required by the Listing Rules are observed and,
where required, reflected in the annual report of the Company.

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company
Secretary is appointed by the Board and reports to the chairman
and the chief executive officer.

Mr. Li Yat Ming, Financial Controller of the Group, has been
appointed by the Company as the company secretary. He is also the
primary contact person of the Company. For the year under review,
Mr. Li has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update his skills and knowledge. The biographical
details of Mr. Li are set out in the section of “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RIGHTS - CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETING

To promote investor relations and communications, meetings
with fund managers and potential investors are held frequently.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 21 days’ notice is given. The Chairman
and Directors are available to answer question on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. An annual general meeting of the
Company shall be held every year within a period of not more than
fifteen (15) months after the holding of the last preceding annual
general meeting.

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
general meeting of the Company and put forward agenda items for
consideration by shareholders. Each general meeting, other than an
annual general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting.
Shareholders holding an aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. Pursuant to rule
13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll. Accordingly, all the resolutions
put to vote at the annual general meetings will be taken by way of
poll. The chairman of the annual general meetings will explain the
detailed procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of
the Annual General Meeting.

After the conclusion of the annual general meetings, the poll results
will be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to shareholders, addition information is
also available to shareholders from the Group’s website.
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A resolution in respect of certain proposed changes to Bye-laws of
the Company was passed in the 2012 AGM held on 20 August 2012.
An updated constitutional document of the Company was published
on 22 August 2012.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS - ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company or at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company secretary
whose contact details are as follows:

Sparkle Roll Group Limited

Rooms 2028-36, 20th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2299 9902

Fax: (852) 2802 8577

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has an on ongoing responsibility for maintaining the
Group’s system of internal control and for the assessment and
management of risk and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets. In meeting
its responsibility, the Board has entrusted the Audit Committee
and appointed professional internal control consultant with the
responsibility to assess risk of the Group and review the internal
control systems of the Group, which include financial, operational
and compliance controls functions. The risk assessment report
documented the major business risk while the internal review
report provided a factual findings of whether the internal control
procedures, systems and controls of the Group are suitably
designed to achieve specified control objectives; have been placed
in operation; and are operating effectively, in which the specific
control objectives are achieved during a specified period from the
testing and review.
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During the year, the Board has conducted review on the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
discussion with the Audit Committee on audit findings and control
issues. The internal control review report for the year listed out the
findings of the weaknesses in respect of the relevant cycles and
procedures with recommendations proposed for the Company
to further improve its internal control system. The results of the
review and the risk assessment report have been reported to the
Board and areas of improvement, if any, have been identified and
appropriate measures have been put in place to manage the risks.
The Board based on the review of audit committee, considers that
the Group’s internal control system is effective and the resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the accounting and financial reporting functions, are adequate for
the period in review.

The Company has reviewed the inside information policy from
time to time and kept its content up to date. The updated inside
information policy for the handling and dissemination of inside
information has been circulated to the Directors, the senior
management and the relevant employees when they are employed.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. It is also the responsibility
of the Directors to ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Company. During the year, the management has
provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board to
enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before it for approval including the updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects.

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance, an
explanation of the basis on which the issuer generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the
Company’s objectives have been prepared and included in the
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
sections of this Annual Report.
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The Directors confirm that they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereafter
collectively referred to as “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. Judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Group has
changed some of its accounting policies following the adoption of
the new or amended HKFRSs which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the year. The accounting
policies adopted by the Group are set out in the “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies” of the note 3 to the financial
statements. The Directors use their best endeavours to ensure a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects in financial reporting. The
Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to financial reporting
are set out on pages 83 to 90 in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sparkle Roll Group Limited

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman & Executive Director
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TONG KAI LAP (Chairman)

Aged 57, Mr. Tong graduated from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1982 with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration.
Since graduation, he worked in various international banks in the
commercial, corporate and investment banking areas. Mr. Tong
is the past president of the Rotary Club of Tsim Sha Tsui, a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Mr. Tong is appointed as a director of Bang & Olufsen
A/S which is listed on Nasdaqg Copenhagen with effect from 14
September 2016. Mr. Tong joined the Group in August 2002.

Mr. Tong has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.

ZHENG HAO JIANG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 50, Mr. Zheng graduated in the Law Department (Economic
Law Speciality) of Peking University in 1990 with a Bachelor degree
in Law. Mr. Zheng has nearly 15 years’ experience in Beijing in
the areas of equity portfolio management, capital market analysis
management and financial advisory. Mr. Zheng is a Standing
Director of China Automobile Dealers Association and a Director
of China High-Tech Industrialization Association. He is a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Zheng joined the Group in October 2006.

Mr. Zheng has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.
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ZHU LEI

Aged 42, Mr. Zhu obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Russian
from the Department of Foreign Languages and Literatures
of Beijing Normal University in 1998. He has over 17 years of
experience in management and sales of watches and jewelry and
management and operation of golf clubs. Mr. Zhu joined the Group
in May 2011 and has since held several positions in the Group,
including but not limited to the executive director of the marketing
department of our Beijing headquarter, the operating director of
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce Development Limited,
the director of the fine wine business of the Group and the general
manager of Sparkle Roll Online (Beijing) Business Service Limited.

Mr. Zhu is the brother-in-law of Mr. Qi Jian Hong who is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Qi Jian Hong is also
the younger brother of Mr. Qi Jian Wei, a Non-executive Director of
the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GAO YU

Aged 43, Mr. Gao is currently a Managing Director of the Private
Equity Division of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, primarily focusing
on private equity investment activities in China. He had also been
a non-executive director of Belle International Holdings Ltd (HK
stock code: 1880) from August 2006 to August 2014 and then has
been re-designated as an independent non-executive director of
Belle International Holdings Limited from 5 August 2014 to present.
He had also been a non-executive director of China Dongxiang
(Group) Co., Ltd. (HK stock code: 3818) (“China Dongxiang”) from
July 2007 to May 2013 and then has been re-designated as an
independent non-executive director of China Dongxiang from 24
May 2013 to present. Mr. Gao is a director of Shandong Buchang
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code:
603858) which was listed on 18 November 2016.

Mr. Gao was also a director of Tongkun Group Co., Ltd. (Shanghai
Stock Exchange stock code: 601233) until his resignation on 30
March 2015.
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Prior to joining Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Mr. Gao worked in
Citigroup’s Investment Banking Division in Asia for about five years.
He also worked in Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette’s Debt Capital
Markets Group in New York. Mr. Gao graduated from Stanford
University with a Master’s degree in engineering-economic systems
and operations research as well as from Tsinghua University in
Beijing with dual Bachelor’s degrees in engineering and economics.
Mr. Gao joined the Group in September 2010.

Ql JIAN WEI

Aged 62, Mr. Qi has over 15-year experience in the jewellery
business in China including trading management, development of
distribution channels and production operations. He graduated from
machineries profession of Beijing Open University in 1982. He is
the elder brother of Mr. Qi Jian Hong, the sole beneficial owner of
Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited. Mr. Qi joined the Group in September
2010.

ZHANG SI JIAN

Aged 51, Mr. Zhang is currently a director of Calor Capital. He was
a Managing Director of Sequoia Capital China focusing on growth
capital investments for about seven years. Prior to joining Sequoia
Capital China in 2007, he worked with Baring Private Equity Asia in
Hong Kong and Shanghai, and Doughty Hanson in London. Prior
to joining private equity in 2000, he worked for Deutsche Bank
in its Investment Banking division where he advised international
companies in their IPO, block trade, debt and convertible bond
offerings. He has a Bachelor’s Degree of Science from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University, a Master Degree of Science from University
of Minnesota and a Master Degree of Business Administration from
The Wharton School of The University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Zhang
joined the Group in December 2009.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHOY SZE CHUNG, JOJO

Aged 58, Mr. Choy is the Vice Chairman of National Resources
Securities Limited. He has extensive experience in the securities
industry and business management. Mr. Choy obtained Master of
Business Administration Degree from University of Wales, Newport
and Master of Business Law Degree from Monash University. Mr.
Choy is an independent non-executive director of Chengdu Putian
Telecommunications Cable Company Limited (HK stock code:
1202), Luye Pharma Group Limited (HK stock code: 2186) and
Zhaojin Mining Industry Company Limited (HK stock code: 1818).

Mr. Choy had also been an independent non-executive director of
Wison Engineering Services Co., Ltd. (HK stock code: 2236) and
Orient Securities International Holdings Limited (HK stock code:
8001) from November 2012 to September 2013 and from March
2010 to May 2016, respectively.

Mr. Choy is also the Vice Chairman of the Institute of Securities
Dealers Limited, a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, a fellow member of Institute of Financial Accountants,
a fellow member of the Institute of Compliance Officers, a fellow
member of the Institute of Public Accountants, a member of
Society of Registered Financial Planner Limited, a member of
the fourth session and the fifth session of the Chief Executive
Election Committee of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(Financial Services Subsector), a member of the Election Committee
of the 12th National People’s Congress of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, a member of Shantou Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Committee, an honorary president of Shantou
Overseas Friendship Association, an honorary president of Shantou
Overseas Exchange Association, an honorary principal of Chen Po
Sum School, a committee member of Rotary Club Kowloon West,
a member of Cash Market Consultative Panel of the HKEx Board
and a director of Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community
Organizations. Mr. Choy joined the Group in October 2007.

Mr. Choy has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.
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LAM KWOK CHEONG

Aged 63, Mr.
University of Hong Kong. He is an independent non-executive

Lam holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the

director of Prosten Health Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Prosten Technology Holdings Limited) (HK stock code: 8026).

Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of GCL New
Energy Holdings Limited (HK stock code: 451) and Southwest
Securities International Securities Limited (HK stock code: 812)
until his resignation on 9 May 2014 and 19 September 2016,
respectively. He was also an independent non-executive director
of Mega Medical Technology Limited (HK stock code: 876) from
September 2004 to June 2014 and then re-designated as a non-
executive director from 20 June 2014 to 30 June 2016. He was also
a non-executive director of China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Sky Forever Supply Chain Management Group
Limited) (HK stock code: 8047) from 17 June 2015 to 27 July 2015.

Mr. Lam is a Justice of the Peace with Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) and a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Lam is currently a China-appointed
Attesting Officer, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk New Territories,
member of Panel of Adjudicators, Obscene Articles Tribunal, a
member of Buildings Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel and a Civil
Celebrant of Marriages. Mr. Lam joined the Group in October 2007.

Mr. Lam has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.
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LEE THOMAS KANG BOR

Aged 63, Mr. Lee is an independent non-executive director and
chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration committee
and a member of the nomination committee of CIG Yangtze Ports
PLC (HK stock code: 8233).

He was also a non-executive director of Man Sang International
Limited (HK stock code: 938) from April 2011 to July 2013. He was
also appointed as an independent non-executive director and the
chairman of the audit committee of Camsing International Holding
Limited (formerly known as Fittec International Group Limited)
(HK stock code: 2662) on 21 January 2016 and 4 February 2016
respectively, and resigned with effect from 31 May 2016.

Mr. Lee is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee
graduated from the University of London with a bachelor’s and
master’s degrees in laws and was called to the Bar of the Lincoln’s
Inn of United Kingdom. He served as president of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong from 1999 to 2002, president of the Asia-
Oceania Tax Consultants’ Association from 2012 to 2014 and is
now its honorary advisor, and he is also the deputy president of
Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association. Mr.
Lee is the chairman of Thomas Lee & Partners Limited, Certified Tax
Advisers. Mr. Lee joined the Group in August 2008.

Mr. Lee has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Ql JIAN HONG

Aged 50, Mr. Qi has over 20 years’ experience in the areas of
wholesale and retail management of luxury goods in China. Mr. Qi
is also the sole beneficial owner of Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited, a
controlling shareholder of the Company. He is the younger brother
of Mr. Qi Jian Wei, a non-executive Director.

Mr. Qi was the Honorary Advisor from 1 December 2015 to 31
March 2017 and then serve as the Honorary Chairman of the
Company from 1 April 2017 to present.

Mr. Qi was the President of the automobile dealership division
and watch distributorship division and was regarded as a senior
management of the Group from June 2008 to November 2015.

Mr. Qi is currently a director and a general manager of Cultural
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd (formerly known as Song Liao Automotive
Co., Ltd) (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 600715).

Mr. Qi has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of the
SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors —
Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares
of the Company” of this annual report.

CONSULTANT

ZHAO XIAO DONG

Aged 49, Mr. Zhao is the Consultant in respect of the watch and
jewellery business of the Group. He has over 15 years’ experience
in the areas of wholesale and retail management of luxury goods in
Beijing.

Mr. Zhao was the executive director, the Deputy Chairman and the
Chief Operating Officer of the Company from September 2008 to
December 2015.

Mr. Zhao is currently a Member of Supervisory Board of Cultural
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd (formerly known as Song Liao
Automotive Co., Ltd) (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code:

600715).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LI YAT MING

Aged 37, Mr. Li is the Financial Controller, Company Secretary and
Authorised Representative of the Company and he joined the Group
in July 2009. He has over 10 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, financial management, taxation and company secretarial
fields. Prior to joining the Group, he had served in an international
accounting firm. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
a Postgraduate Certificate in Corporate Compliance from The
University of Hong Kong School of Professional and Continuing
Education. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and also is a member of Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute and Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association.

LEUNG KWOK NING

Aged 55, Mr. Leung is the General Manager of Bentley Tianjin and
Head of branded automobile after-sales service division of the
Group. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of experience in managing the
automobile aftersales service businesses and sales management
particularly for Bentley since 2003. Mr. Leung joined the Group
in June 2008 and he was responsible for managing the sales of
Bentley and aftersales service.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

JIA HAI TAO

Aged 49, Mr. Jia graduated from the master’s programme in
business economics (FEELEEH%) of the Graduate School of
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 1998 and is the General
Manager of Rolls-Royce Beijing of the Group. Mr. Jia has held
various senior management positions since 1998 in the fields of
sales and marketing, and in these positions, he was responsible
for the marketing of computer equipment at KeHai Group* (&}
/& E), consultancy and marketing of life insurance at Sino-US
MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd.* (fFEKE@ AZFRE A7) and film
studio marketing at Beijing Sparkle Roll International Film Studio
Management Limited* (bt RBRHBIR M EE AR A 7)) . Mr. Jia
joined the Group in September 2012 and has served in various
capacities, including deputy general manager of the automobile
dealership division, deputy general manager of Rolls-Royce Beijing,
deputy general manager and general manager of Bentley Beijing of
the Group.

LIU JING JING

Aged 43, Ms. Liu graduated from the Beijing University of
Technology in 1997 with a Bachelor of Engineering in air-
conditioning and cooling (Z=F RS EHE) and is the Head of
automobile dealership division and deputy general manager and
sales manager of Lamborghini Beijing of the Group. Since 1997,
Ms. Liu had been working in the area of public relations with Beijing
Dongan Group* (JtE %&£ E), Shidu Mall* (H#EHE) and
Zhongshang Department Store* (A & & ). She joined the Bentley
Beijing Group in 2001 as assistant to president and was responsible
for handling commercial vehicle orders, vehicle purchase and liaison
with foreign vehicle manufacturers for nearly 6 years. Ms. Liu joined
the Group in July 2008 and has served as assistant to president and
purchasing manager of the automobile dealership division of the
Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

CHEN LING

Aged 38, Mr.
Technology in 2001 with a Bachelor of Engineering in computer

Chen graduated from the Beijing Institute of

science and from the University of Wollongong in Australia in 2009
with a Master in Information Technology Management. He is the
General Manager of B&O PLAY at Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading
Development Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, and Head of the
e-commerce division of the Group. Mr. Chen has been engaging,
and has accumulated rich experience, in corporate management
and information technology management since 2010. Mr. Chen
joined the Group in July 2013 and was assistant to president of the
automobile dealership division of the Group and training manager of
B&O PLAY at Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Development Limited.

QU JING

Aged 36, Ms. Qu graduated from the undergraduate programme in
fashion design and performance of the Beijing Institute of Fashion
Technology in 2001 and is the General Manager of the Group’s
Sparkle Roll Honor Club. Ms. Qu has been engaging in the sale of
Bentley vehicles for various years after graduation and later joined
the Group in June 2010. Prior positions at the Group include Head
of the sales department of the wine division, Beijing Sparkle Roll
Luxury World (Hua Mao) and Rolls-Royce Beijing of the Group. She
has extensive experience in cross-selling of various product lines of
the Group and handling VIP relations.

CHENG BIN

Aged 46, Ms. Cheng graduated from the Kwantlen Polytechnic
University in Canada in 2008 with a Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and obtained the chartered
professional accountant and certified general accountant (CPA,
CGA) qualification in May 2013. She is the Head of the watches and
jewelry division and the Head of the marketing and media division of
the Group. Ms. Cheng had served as auditor and financial controller
at BDO Canada and Canada JinBi International Limited* (&K%
BRI AR A R]) since 2008. She has been working with the Group
in the posts mentioned above from March 2013.

*

for identification purpose only
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

We begin our business with a mission to build a kingdom of
luxury goods dealerships and act as the leader to develop the
PRC luxury goods market at its full speed. Our responsibility
includes but not limited to providing quality products and services
to customers. Sustainable development is also an important
issue with serious implications for the way we all live and work.
We are therefore very pleased to publish the first Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report with details of our efforts
in sustainable development. This Report provides information on
environmental and social issues that are relevant to the Group and
our stakeholders.

The ESG report focuses on our major business-automobile for
trading and provision of after-sale services in Beijing and Tianjin.
The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities, Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (“HKEx”), reflecting all HKEx General
Disclosure requirements under Appendix 27 for the financial year,
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND BESEREEMTMG
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To formulate the direction of our ESG Report, we need to  AHIFEHRMESE - HE@LEEAREZ A K
understand and identify the material ESG issues for the Group. 1 ,ATQMSUJEE IREEIEE  HeREiarE
Various stakeholders, including the board of directors, employees A[HRE - EEHME (BIEEEE  REERKE)
and shareholders, were engaged to fill in an online questionnaire EEFESEGESHAETL - +ERE L=
and rate the importance of twenty ESG topics. The results were REABZECEEMESL - BELSEEENELY
used to conduct a materiality assessment, as presented below: EFEEWFE - 2A0T

Materiality Assessment

EEMFIE

Materiality of ESG issues

B -(HEREABECEEN

From the materiality assessment, it was identified that our focus MEZWNAME  BREMEZERESES
should be placed on the products and services in meeting ®mRZE@EBRBURBMEECRS - EE
customers’ need and the integrity within our operations. Employee Bl AEFEERBRKEBAST 2 EE R
training is also important to maintain the high quality services &0« HFIN TIEFIENHEEE 25 -

and retain talents. Details of our efforts are presented in the later

sections.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

QUALITY SERVICES AND PRODUCTS

In the automobile business, our major suppliers are the branded
automobiles, namely Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce. Being
the top luxury car brands in the world, the product quality is of
strict quality assurance process to ensure customer comfort and
safety, and hence the products meet all laws and regulations related
to product responsibility, including the Regulation concerning
Management of Compulsive Product Certification (€ 3& 14 7 T 52 35
EIETE)Y). The brands also have commitments to environmental
protection and social responsibility and therefore, have their own
requirements and expectations on their dealers, such as how to
maintain customers satisfaction and the accessories and materials
used in our after-sales services.

We strive to cooperate with the suppliers to create mutual benefits.
Our employees constantly participate in the training organised by
our brand suppliers, to improve in areas such as brand knowledge
and product information, sales techniques and customer services.
When handling customer complaints, we adhere to the guidance
provided by the brands and strictly manage our staff to ensure that
they act appropriately to meet the brands’ expectations. The brands
also perform customer satisfaction survey on sales and after-sales
services to check if our services exceed or fall short of customers’
expectations.

We also take customer privacy seriously. Member profile is one
of the most important business information and resources of the
Group and therefore, employees are responsible for keeping the
information confidential. Employees are restricted to transfer, sell,
disclose or keep privately. Penalty for non-compliance with this rule
can be dissolution of employment contract.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EMPLOYEE MOTIVATION

As of 31 March 2017, our Group had a total of 493 employees, in
which 233 are males and 260 are females. The Group employment
policy ensures that the employees are treated fairly, equally and
free of discrimination. We strive to create a workplace that is free
from discrimination with respect to human rights. One key way
of differentiating us from other luxury goods dealers is customer
service. Delivering superior customer service leads to the growth in
sales and in return, increase our ability to invest in employees. Thus,
we strive to create an environment that motivates our employees
so that they understand their jobs and feel a higher degree of
satisfaction to provide excellent service. Our staff handbook sets
out the employment terms and conditions which are in compliance
with national laws and regulations.

Pay and Benefits

The Group has a system in formulating employees remuneration
package, which includes basic salary, commission, discretionary
bonus, medical insurance and retirement funds, and conducts
analysis to ensure our employees are rewarded competitively in a
balance of market competitiveness, organisational conditions and
individual performance.

We also set standard working hours for employees and minimise
overtime work for our staff. In any event, overtime should be on
a voluntary basis. All staff are entitled to statutory holidays, paid
annual leaves, sick leaves, marriage leaves, compassionate leaves,
maternity leaves. We also respect breastfeeding staff by providing
reasonable break time for working mothers in the workplace.

Act with Integrity

Integrity is one of the fundamental values to maintain at our
workplace. During the recruitment process, we uphold the
principle of fairness and openness, and strictly prohibit gender
discrimination, as well as child or forced labour. Every employee has
the opportunity to be promoted and we adhere to a fair way when
making promotion decisions-based on the employees’ performance,
potential and team spirit etc.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

We also expect our employee to uphold our values to create an
ethical workplace and provide customers with excellent service.
As stipulated in the staff handbook, our employees are required
to adhere to the code of conduct and demonstrate sound moral
and ethical principles at work, as well as comply with national laws
and regulations. In any event of unlawful acts such as corruption,
fraud, bribery, malpractice, extortion, fraud, money laundering, the
company will immediately terminate the employment contract.

Employees also have the responsibility to safeguard both tangible
and intangible assets of the Group, as well as our clients and
suppliers. Employees are required to maintain the equipment and
facilities in good conditions, and prevent loss and damage of
the merchandised goods. Personal and confidential information,
including but not limited to salaries, business data, customer
information, shall be protected and shall not be shared with third
parties or disclosed such information outside the Company.

Career Advancement

We hope to provide employees with career development
opportunities for achieving personal goals, as well as maintaining
a sustainable development of the Group through retaining skilled
and experienced staff. We prioritise promotion opportunities for our
staff when job vacancies occur and provide training to enhance their
skills to fill in competency gaps. All new employees have to attend
an induction training in order to understand basic information such
as company’s background and business goals, rights and benefits,
rules and regulations, as well as relevant professional knowledge.
For existing employees, we offer both internal and external training
depending on employee’s roles and position. A training plan is
developed annually to ensure they receive proper training. Our
directors also joined an in-house training held by The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors on inside information and risk management to
update the directors with the latest knowledge.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Workplace Health and Safety

A safe workplace creates a productive work environment. Safety
notices and reminders are posted in our after-sales service
centers to provide information on potential hazardous, such as
welding fumes and noise, with emergency handling and protective
measures. For workers engaged in hazardous operations, such as
spray painting and panel beating in our after-sales service centres,
occupational health check-up is conducted at least annually and
appropriate personal protective equipment is provided. We also
provide additional subsidies to workers whose work is at higher
risks.

Emergency plans are developed with clearly defined responsibility
of different departments and personnel, as well as guidance on
preventing and handling emergencies for hazardous chemical

leakage, fire and occupational health and safety hazardous.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We strive to minimise adverse environmental impacts from our
operations, including both the after-sales service centres and

offices.

Automotive after sales service centre

Apart from selling cars in our automobile dealership, we also provide
vehicle repair, maintenance, and other after-sales services for our
customers. We ensure the operation of the after-sales service
centres comply with applicable environmental laws and regulations
with proper measures implemented to reduce adverse impacts to
the environment. An environmental impact assessment has been
conducted in each facility and they have gone through the final
inspections.

Within our operation, wastewater and solid waste generations are of
the major concerns. Wastewater from car washing is either treated
properly before discharging or recycled by a third party. Hazardous
waste, such as waste engine oil, is stored and labelled separately
with other solid waste. To manage hazardous waste properly, we
have signed an agreement with licensed third parties for collection,
transportation and treatment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Office

We have set up an Office Environmental Policy for guiding

employees to use resources wisely on a daily operation basis.

Notices are posted in the offices reminding employees to save

the use of paper, water and energy. For example, lights and air-

conditioners should be switched off before leaving the office; doors

and windows should be closed while air-conditioning is on.

Paper

Employees are encouraged to recycle and reuse envelopes
Employees are encouraged to use double-sided printing and
photocopying

Employees are encouraged to preview and print carefully
Collection boxes are set up for reusing single-sided papers

Water

Employees are encouraged to report leakage of taps, water
pipes and toilets immediately to the relevant department
Employees are encouraged to shut water tap after washing
hands

Energy

Employees are encouraged to turnoff computers, screens and
printers when leaving the workplace

Employees are encouraged to use desk lamps to directly
illuminate the work areas

Employees are encouraged to switch off the lights and air-
conditioning in the meeting room when not in use

Employees are encouraged to use natural light whenever
possible

Employees are encouraged to set the air-conditioning and
maintain the room temperature to balance between electricity
use and comfort

Light fittings and dust filters in air-conditioners are cleaned to
maintain good conditions
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION B E R

We are at the stage of setting up community investment policy that B IFERE]EEA REBR LY 1 @EIEEHK
suits the condition of our Group, not only to enhance the Company SHFHEE @ MERSAQATIER @ Mt &E
image but also to contribute back to the society. Certain charity HEE - CEEIRFEZETESZEHREBT

events and donations are planned in the coming year, including BIiFEKELZEZEELSH]HRUBEITE -
an agreement with Jackie Chan Charitable Foundation to donate HREIFHIEH A REKIBE @ REAMEN -

vehicle. More details will be shared in the future ESG reporting.

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX EEBRESBE HERETARE
Sl &5
HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures Policy/Procedure Reference section
BERZMESR  HBRERRER - REE BE/BF 2EEH
A. Environment
A BE
A1 Emission Information on: We follow the practices Environmental Protection
LNE: 3¢ FRERMBZERBHN KR zH)5 AF  as per the Environmental RERE
rEERENELS Impact Assessments,
where applicable
(@  the policies; and BEFREYETHEN
@) BE:k (@A)
(b)  compliance and material non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes, etc.
b) BIRBRERHETABEAVEZREBE
BRFENI 2 EH
A2 Use of Resource Policies on efficient use of resources including Office Environmental Policy ~ Environmental Protection
A2 BEFER energy, water and other raw materials. WNTRIENE BIgRE
BRERER(BER  KEREMRERMH) 2B
A3 The Environment Policies on minimising the operation’s significant The Group’s operations do -
and Natural impact on the environment and natural resources. not have significant impact
Resources RELBHBERARERERNEATEZHE on the environment and
A3 RERXAER natural resources.
FEECEBVERHRER
AREREKERTE -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 £ B A R A A
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RIE - HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures Policy/Procedure Reference section
BERBAERS HERERRERES—REE BE/ BF 2EEH
B. Social
B.#&
B1 Employment Information on: Employee Handbook Employee Motivation-Pay
B1 {Ef% BREHRERE  AEREAR IHRSE -BRE-F EEFH and Benefits; Act with
gite 2l REGUAREMFERERNZ - Integrity
BEMB N REMN:
(@  the policies; and BETE
@ BER:R
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
b) BTHETABEAREZREBEARRANZ

aH -
B2 Health and Safety Information on: Occupational Health Employee Motivation-Health
B2 REHZ2 BRREZ2TERERREREBEBEMEE 2 - Check-up Policy and Safe Workplace
BERWEER BENB-BERERLT
(@) the policies; and z
@ BE:R Emergency Plans
(b)  compliance and material non-compliance 2558
with relevant standards, rules and regulations
on providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
b) ETRERBREBEEL  RE LRI ER -
B3 Development and Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and Employee Handbook Employee Motivation -
Training skills for discharging duties at work. Description of EEFH Career Advancement
B3 RERZYI training activities. EEHE-HERRE

FRRNERBT TIERAZABRRECHRR -
AEAED) ©

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures

Policy/Procedure

Reference section

EBRBMERS  HERERBEEI-REE R/ BF SEZEH

B4 Labour Standard Information on: Recruitment and Hiring Employee Motivation

B4 ¥ T%H BREEI SRS, Procedures EEXE
TERERER

=

the policies; and
HE R

compliance and material non-compliance with

T =

relevant standards, rules and regulations on
preventing child or forced labour.

b) BIRERERABERN  RELBRO2ER

B5 Supply Chain Policies on managing environmental and social risks Our major suppliers Quality Services and
Management of supply chain. are well known brands Products
B5 tEHEEE ERREE/RERUHEARYE who have strict quality BERBREmR
assurance process, as
well as commitment to
environmental protection
and social responsibility.
BANEERANZmE -
BERBEBRBEERERE
NREERRIMAGEE o
B6 Product Information on: Customer Complaint Quality Services and
Responsibility BHMRRERMRE  REELZ S ES BHR  Handing Products
B6EMEMR REEEARBRAEL | EPRFHRE BERBERER

=

the policies; and
HE: R
compliance and material non-compliance

T =

with relevant standards, rules and regulations
on health and safety, advertising, labeling
and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

b) ETREREREWER  RERROIER -

Customer Satisfaction

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 £ B A R A A 8 1
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
BERBAERS HERERRERES—REE

Policy/Procedure

BE/ B

Reference section

SEEH

B7 Anti-corruption Information on:
B7 RESS BHVLESE 9% RFREREZ

=

the policies; and

HE R

=

Employee Handbook
EEFM

Employee Motivation -
Act with Integrity
EEMB-AETE

(o)  compliance and material non-compliance
with relevant standards, rules and regulations
on bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
b) ETRERBREEEL  RE LRI ER -
B8 Community Policies on community engagement to understand We are at the stage of Community Contribution
Investment the community’s needs where it operates and setting up community HEEE
B8 HERE to ensure its activities take into consideration investment policy that suits

communities’ interests.
BN E2ARTREENEHRRE ENBREE
BEEEEEHRBME 2R -

2 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
8 ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F#i

the condition of our Group.
BAEEHEES AEEMR
RAZHBREHE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Tel : +852 2218 8288

Fax: +852 2818 2239

www.bdo.com.hk
A

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EEEE : +852 2218 8288 BEATHEPI5R
{EH : +852 2818 2239 JkZ 254
www.bdo.com.hk
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ﬁﬁgiﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ’aﬁéﬁﬂﬂﬁi
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REFZFMA 7.2 ERAA])
QUALIFIED OPINION REBER

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sparkle
Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to 191, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2017, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

AZBE(ATBHEEE ] EERFE 1 191

B ARRREEARAR( AR
LREWBAR (SB[ E&E]) 2&E6/M%

WK MWEAMBEBRREER_T—LF=A

=t+—RAZEEMBRRSRE - BEEZB L
ifzi i\ﬁuﬁzkfﬁ&i Zﬁ/ﬁ\ Eimbi%&

RERAERETER  URKEETIEREN
2 HBEEEESHOREE -

A A

EERR BEFFLHZHBE I REBRZE
it | —ﬁﬁﬁﬁuz%aZTﬁE?&’iﬁﬁl\ o =Nb
i&%«%ﬁffﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁi’é quEﬂi/‘AﬁEﬁﬁZi?\i%ﬁﬁﬂi&
EREEAAMRBKRT BEER_-F—
i:ﬂ :+—EIZ%%%E!7I7T%#/R&&132EI¢
FEZGEVBRARGERERE - HER
BEBAARIIZEBEREZSRE
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B ZBERE (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As stated in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group has applied the equity method to account for its investment
in an associate, Bang & Olufsen A/S (“B&0”), a Denmark listed
entity. The investment was acquired on 16 December 2016. In
applying the equity method to prepare the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has used the financial information of B&O
for the three months ended 28 February 2017 as contained in
B&O’s published interim report dated 7 April 2017 (“B&QO’s interim
financial information”). As noted in the interim report, B&O’s interim
financial information was prepared in accordance with International
Accounting Standard 34 (“IAS 34”) Interim Financial Reporting as
endorsed by the European Union (“EU”). In the application of the
equity method, the Company’s management has assessed whether
there should be adjustments for differences in accounting policies
as adopted by the Company and B&O, and for any significant
events or transactions of B&O in the fifteen days pre-acquisition
period included in B&QO’s interim financial information and in
March 2017 (“significant events or transactions adjustments”). The
Group’s share of profit and the carrying amount of the investment
in B&O included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to HK$507,000 and
HK$660,075,000 respectively.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Auditing 600 Special
Considerations — Audits of Group Financial Statements (Including
the Work of Component Auditors), B&O is identified as a significant
component of the Group due to its individual financial significance
to the Group. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we shall perform an
audit on the financial information of B&O which is included in the
consolidated financial statements.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 3
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B ZBERE (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)

During the course of our audit, we were denied access to the
systems, books and records, management, and the auditors of B&O
because such access is restricted by certain rules and regulations in
Denmark relating to disclosure of inside information. As there were
no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to whether
B&O’s interim financial information has been presented fairly, in all
material respect, in accordance with IAS 34 as endorsed by the EU
and whether the significant events or transactions adjustments have
been properly assessed (see the first paragraph of this section), and
as a result whether the carrying amount of the Group’s investment
in B&O as at 31 March 2017 and the Group’s share of B&QO’s
results for the period from 16 December 2016 to 31 March 2017 as
included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements were fairly
stated. Also, due to this limitation on our scope of work, we have
not obtained sufficient audit evidence relating to the disclosures
about B&O'’s financial information. Consequently, we were unable
to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts were
necessary.

Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in
respect of the carrying amount of the investment in B&O as at 31
March 2017 would have a consequential effect on the Group’s net
assets as at 31 March 2017, and the Group’s profit for the year then
ended and related disclosures in these financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

RBERE®R &)

RESEBEZBER  BEEREEBBIOZZE
& BRE - Rotr - BIEEE RZEE - DEABE
NEBERNEEEEEZE THRE RERR
ZEEE c HRESAREREMEMS AMER
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AR TFE2RIREHETHERSH
IR FAE(ZHAHE—R)ESAREESR
ZEE EMEEIRR_T—tF=-A=1+—
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TEZEE - -BAlt TEEFETZESSER
BERZELEMFAE -

S I
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esrfl) (TSR BEEBYR BEXKE - I
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B ZBERE (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the “Basis
for Qualified Opinion” section, we have determined the matter
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Impairment assessment of goodwill
Refer to notes 4.6, 5(a) and 17 to the financial statements

The carrying value of goodwill amounted to HK$206,171,000 as at
31 March 2017. The Group is required to perform an impairment
test for goodwill at least annually. The impairment test is based on
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill was assigned to. We regarded this as a key audit matter
because management’s impairment assessment processes involved
significant judgements, including the degree of subjectivity of
expected future cash flow forecasts, associated key assumptions
and inputs applied.

Our response

Our procedures to address the impairment assessment of goodwill
included:

= Assessing the value-in-use calculation used by the
management;

— Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the business and industry; and

— Checking the inputs against source documents, such as
approved budgets, and considering the reasonableness of
these budgets.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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B ZBERE (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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B ZBERE (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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B A RS (E)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE BREI B GEMERERAEZ

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL B5FE %)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit e THRREAEAZ AR 2 B H] - DARREHE
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in B 2EZER BIEEEY E%IW
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an BRI El 2 BMIEERER o

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used o SHEZEEMEASREZREEUR
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related e @t st MBI E S 2 A B -
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e ﬂi%}mﬂﬁiﬁ%«E*QHJr%E**Z'\A%’I‘ii;

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit TEH 4w - BIBATS 2 BZRE - RE
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists ELTFEEAEY SEEBELEY
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt RENEBRERREZEHHIBEREHEZ
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we EATHEEE WESREGTEEKX
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to TREEM BV EEZEBAIREF IR
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures FEERAEHGAMERRTEERES
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures B2 RE - j***ﬁﬁ%%}}iggéﬂTE‘t 8l
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are BEITEEZZER BF2Mm I E
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our RE ZZEA R E H ,HHJJ:FFrHX BZE
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 2R o AT - AREHXIBRAAAEE
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. B EEBETREEBFRELE -

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the e T ELEEVBHRR ZEENR AR - &

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, BEAR BEEEEL  UREESH
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent BHREED AL RABEL G REH -

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the e T EEBRRERBAEBR I ZITBEE
financial information of the entities or business activities within PHERZE D « BE ZEZRE  UHER
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial EUBHERERER - BEBFIREE .
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision BEERUHITEBEZ -  ZEZHEXS R
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely AEREIET -

responsible for our audit opinion.
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B ZBERE (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin

Practising Certificate Number P06162

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016
—E—+F —ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FHET
Revenue Uk &5 7 2,781,222 2,376,904
Cost of sales SHE KA (2,450,338) (2,187,801)
Gross profit EF 330,884 189,103
Other income and net gains H AU A KU 25 58 8 69,500 122,379
Selling and distribution costs HE RRERAAK (233,983) (229,577)
Administrative expenses THEH (60,270) (65,772)
Operating profit R A 9 106,131 16,133
Finance costs & B AN 10 (15,725) (49,326)
Share of profit of an associate FEAE — R B & A &) A 19 507 -
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSBADER(BE8) 90,913 (33,193)
Income tax expense FrfSfi i 11 (1,162) (487)
Profit/(loss) for the year REFEZRF(FE) 89,751 (33,680)
Other comprehensive income, BB EMEZEBA
net of tax
Items that may be reclassified BERuEHHEREREER
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH :
Exchange differences on translation — # & & 9N 75 B F5 o X
of financial statements of foreign ZEH Z%
operations (33,647) (24,541)
Share of other comprehensive FE{h — R B = R A
income of an associate 2 E A EERA 19 (85) -
Other comprehensive income RNEFEEMEAEMBA -
for the year, net of tax HBRHIE (33,732) (24,541)
Total comprehensive income AEEZEKRALE
for the year 56,019 (58,221)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A 9 1
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Consolidated Statement Of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

BE-_T—

tHF=A=+—BLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FET T T
Profit/(loss) for the year TH AL
attributable to: REE®RF(FHE) :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZZ =N 87,845 (32,328)
Non-controlling interests El 1,906 (1,352)
89,751 (33,680)
Total comprehensive income THALEAS
attributable to: e PN
Owners of the Company RAEHER A 55,674 (56,386)
Non-controlling interests FEPER R S 345 (1,835)
56,019 (58,221)
Earnings/(loss) per share AATEE AEL
attributable to owners BRERN (FHE)
of the Company 15
HK2.6 HK(1.1)
Basic and diluted EARREE cents &4 cents &1l

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A\—ZT—+F=A=+—H Asat31 March 2017

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET TETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - W RERE 16 91,355 107,023
Goodwill SRS 17 206,171 206,171
Other intangible asset HthEREE 18 472 550
Investment in an associate R—REEE R 2 RE 19 660,075 -
Amount due from a JE U — TE FE 4R AR AR 2 RNIE
non-controlling interest 20(a) - 2,320
Rental deposits paid to a Eff—2EEATHEES
related party 20(b) 15,101 17,554
973,174 333,618
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 923,554 1,000,203
Trade receivables FEUNE 5 TR IH 22 6,654 8,527
Deposits, prepayments and e BEFEK
other receivables H fih fE Y FhIE 23 176,807 152,350
Amounts due from related parties FEUFAE A+ FT8 20(c) 15,622 18,677
Amount due from a non-controlling & Ut — I8 FE 1R AR 4 25 3R
interest 20(a) - 9,281
Pledged deposits B ER 24 72,240 55,686
Restricted bank balance PR HIR1TAEER 24 6,180 -
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHERE 24 192,103 157,164
1,393,160 1,401,888
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables PN B 5 3R 25 19,931 27,444
Receipts in advance, accrued FEU FRIE Fgﬁd‘%ﬁﬁ
charges and other payables K& E fth fE S I8 26 154,680 129,545
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAST FEVE AR B 2 KR
interests 20(a) 1,578 1,284
Amounts due to related parties FETREE A L3RR 20(c) 1,085 =
Provision for taxation TRIE R 3,768 3,458
Borrowings ==Y 27 396,377 488,740
577,419 650,471

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A 93
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

A—T—+F=A=+—H Asat31 March 2017

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET T T
Net current assets REEEFE 815,741 751,417
Total assets less current liabilities A &EER A ARG 1,788,915 1,085,035
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other payables H b & 5B 26 258 273
Deferred tax liabilities BN IEA R 28 830 1,036
1,088 1,309
Net assets EEFE 1,787,827 1,083,726
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners ADREEA
of the Company iR
Share capital A& A 29 8,282 5,959
Reserves HE 30 1,765,712 1,050,219
1,773,994 1,056,178
Non-controlling interests JEIE I RE = 36 13,833 27,548
Total equity AR 1,787,827 1,083,726

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 191 were
approved and for issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2017
and signed on its behalf by:

Tong Kai Lap
BRI
Director

EF

94 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 3

FI1BEEZFE191 ENES
FRAZTN\BEEESHERFETE - A
THESREKEE

Zheng Hao Jiang
BREST
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE_T—tF=ZA=1—HLHFE

2017 2016
:%—tﬂi =z /\¢
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
By FET T
Cash flows from operating REERRERE
activities
Profit/(loss) before income tax BETER AR (E8) 90,913 (33,193)
Adjustments for: FATSIEEL AR
Bank interest income RITFIBWA 8 (586) (1,869)
Gain on disposals of property, HEME -« HEX
plant and equipment Rz et 8 (1,514) (2,679)
Amortisation of other intangible asset Hip & = 9 78 78
Depreciation of property, ERE: =&
plant and equipment ZIE 9 21,948 26,560
Net realised gains on derivative MESRMIEZE#E
financial instruments Wz S 28 8,9 = (368)
Interest expenses MEFAX 10 15,725 49,326
Write-down of inventories 75 MO 9 5,784 2,963
Reversal of write-down of inventories B EF E MR 9 (2,627) =
Share of profit of an associate D6 — el & A 7 A 19 (507) -
Operating profit before BEBESEEE 2
working capital changes 4 | 129,214 40,818
Decrease in inventories FERD 26,909 451,108
Decrease/(increase) in trade W E 5 I8
receivables w3 m) 1,463 (8,610)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, %e  FBEFIENREME
prepayments and other receivables WosRaE (32 0n) /w4 (31,034) 61,098
Decrease in balances with related parties 228 A T8 &5 887 3,287 706
Increase in restricted bank balance PR IR 1T A ARG N (6,322)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERE SR CRd),/ (6,468) 4,325
Increase in receipts in advance, Bl IE - BT ER R
accrued charges and other payables H & {5 FRIF L A0 29,274 33,954
Cash generated from operations REXBHERSE 146,323 583,399
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEANER (79) (454)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BEREASBMEHR 526 =
Other jurisdictions tax paid B EMREERE (1,314) (1,033)
Net cash generated from operating SRR &
activities JFEE 145,456 581,912

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3k
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016
:%—tfﬁ = /\i
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
By THERT FHET
Cash flows from investing activities ®BEZEHZEHERE
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank BEHEIFRITER
deposits (), b (19,801) 168,399
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  BBERERE
equipment (13,564) (3,787)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYE %%%%&%&1%
plant and equipment FTi5 2 6,246 17,346
Investment in an associate R—FH #EQTE’J&E (5,067) -
Settlement of derivative financial PESRmIALEE » F58
instruments, net - (3,512)
Interest received B IF 8 586 1,869
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZH () Friz
investing activities B2 FEE (31,600) 180,315
Cash flows from financing activities ®BEFBHZREFE
Capital contribution from a non-controlling — &1 B 2 7] 3E1E AR fE %5
interest of a subsidiary HE 11,601 -
Advances from non-controlling (Y EEUNEIE 23
interests of subsidiaries B 374 1,315
Advances from a related party REBEATHER 803
New borrowings raised ey 2,266,768 2,278,038
Repayments of borrowings BREE (2,333,434) (2,884,879)
Interest paid EARHE (15,725) (49,326)
Net cash used in financing activities B EE % FEE (69,613) (654,852)
Net increase in cash and cash e RBHLEMEEE
equivalents B nFE R 44,243 107,375
Cash and cash equivalents at FPZEER
beginning of the year He&%EER 157,164 52,619
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREH s HE
changes, net FEE (9,304) (2,830)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZEER
of the year, comprising cash BeEEER
at banks and in hand BERTREFRES 192,103 157,164

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

Attributable to owners of the Company

AOREEAR
Non-
Share Share  Capitl  Special  Confributed  Exchange Other  Statutory ~ Retained controlling Total
captal  premium*  reserve’  resevet  surplust  resenve'  resee'  resene’  profitst Total ~ interests equity
Br BBRE  EREE GRRET  SARs  MERR  AREE  MERE  RERA &f  #ERER  EREE
HKSOO0  HKSO0  HKSOO0  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOW
Thn  TE TRt TEr TR TR TR TR TR TR TR Thn
A1 Apri 201 R-5-14RA-A 59 7993 3508 (36610 26644 U BIKIE) 12008 283911 1,112,064 17781 1130345
Ceptel contbuion fomanon-contoling.~—~ ~ENBATEARER
intrest of a subsidery i e 116
Transactions with owners ARENEGIRS L1
Loss for theyea IEREE Ry @y (13 (6
Other comprehensieincome LLESLN
~Exchangs dferences on ianstion o
offoregn operaions % (24,039 - - -0 [ A
Tota compehenshe icome forhieyear — REERENNAE (24058 - - [y e (8% pe)
Thanser o stadory esene ERTITHE = = T fl i i -
At 31 Metch 2016 and \_2 MEER=T-AR
1 Apri 2016 “E-nERE-A 59 799.3% 3508 (36610 2664 10,681 BIKTE) 12510 20157 1,056,178 UM 1083726
Acqusitonofan asscite(Nofe 19 JE-RREA(MY 21 4568 847879 647679
Acqistonof no-contoling et JEFERES
ot 35 (ita5) (VI 1 13 - - (4080
Transactons with owners ERRNEINS 238 682,908 %329 - - B619% (14060 647,679
Proft for e ear TER ggs oM 106 A
Other comprehensiv ncome HAp2ENA
- Exchange diferenc on fiansaion -BERNRIER
0f foregn operations % (32,086) - - - [0 (1561 (33640)
-Shae ofohercomprehensieincome. -A-EBEAT
of an as0cite LU0 (6 - § ] )
Toto comprehensive noome for heyer — AEE2ENALE (32,089 (83 - b S 5601
Stre ofoferrsenve of n assaciae Ab-FRENTELER = 0 = = 0 = 2
Transrto tatoryresene EamiTiE Ll (1)
At 31 March 2017 A E-tE=A=T-A 8260 148028 3508 (36810) BoM (140 1401 1207 209214 1773.94 13638 178787
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * L ERFBEERBERGE M BN HRE A 24

HK$1,765,712,000 (2016: HK$1,050,219,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

& % 151,765,712,0005 7t ( = T — ;N F -

1,050,219,0003#7T) ©

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017



B 75 ¥R & Y

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —REH

Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited BEEEBER AR (AR A ]) A—HER
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of BREFMKZZABR AR - EF
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, E R bt 4 Clarendon House, 2 Church
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business is Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda - i1
in Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock FELEMBAER  c ARFIRHDES
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). BHAER AR AR ([BRAT]) £ e
The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries AR REWNB AR (KB IAEE]) 2
(together the “Group”) are distributorships of luxury goods. FEEBREIENRES  FEAMES
The Group’s operations are mainly based in Hong Kong, WG EE (L RRIBERE

Mainland China and Malaysia.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company EERE KRR ZEBEEERA R &
and ultimate holding company of the Company is Sparkle Roll AT AR AR AEIEIRE R AR ([ R
Holdings Limited (“SRHL”), which is incorporated in the British IR REBRE X RS ML) ©
Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. REEE

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
All values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RHEBREREEL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs - First (a) HRAFTIREBII2ETEHERE
effective on 1 April 2016 EA-R-ZT-—A"FNA—HEAX
M
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first RAREE » NEBEHXERANLTH
time the following new standards, amendments and BB SETRI A HEM 2 FaT 28 -
interpretations issued by HKICPA, which are relevant to BT RZ2E - BEHER - &3]
and effective for the Group’s financial statements for the EREBEAERHRH T —F/MH
annual period beginning on 1 April 2016: —HRAR 2 FREEE 2B EmTAE

B8 - WEARZFHHRE -

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements BROBREEN () —B-——F2%
2012-2014 Cycle —E-NERH
LEELE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative BACHENE1TH ERE]
2{BET
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable BEGHENZ 165 ERhEREH
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation RERSIERERR  ZABRAE
and Amortisation a5
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate EEOQHENF 75 BUNBRE
Financial Statements ZET LIERE
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: BRI REE] REEE:
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Applying the £10%% - FRHB ERAGHISMER
Consolidation Exception BERBIE 125
REBGER
F 285
The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs had no RNz EF ] RIS E] BB 153k
material impact on how the results and financial positions ERAABARFERBEFE 2 EE
for the current and prior years have been prepared and RSN 2 #R R & 251 75 230 &
presented. BEATE

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The following are new and revised HKFRSs that have
been issued and are potentially relevant to the Group’s
operations but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative'

HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
HKAS 12 for Unrealised Losses’
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments®
HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2014-2016
(Amendments) Cycle®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) if
the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell
the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All
other debt and equity instruments are measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 (2014) includes a new expected loss
impairment model for all financial assets not measured
at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39
and new general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements.

3.

BRNERBMB|MEER 2)

(b)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-Z

—tF=ZA=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the amount of
change in fair value attributable to change in credit risk of
the liability is recognised in other comprehensive income
unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
In addition, HKFRS 9 (2014) retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial

mismatch.

assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach
to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to
HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance
on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost
and complexity of applying the standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-Z

—tF=ZA=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of
the right-of use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also,
the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

As disclosed in note 32(b), total operating lease
commitments of the Group in respect of rented premises
as at 31 March 2017 amounted to HK$313,863,000.
The directors do not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16
as compared with the current accounting policy would
result in a significant impact on the Group’s financial
performance but it is expected that certain portion
of these lease commitments will be required to be
recognised in the form of an asset (for the right-of-use)
and a financial liability (for the payment obligation) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group will apply the above new and revised HKFRSs
when they become effective. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of the impact of the above new
and revised HKFRSs. Except as described above, the
directors do not anticipate that the application of other
new and revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

3.

BRNERBMB|MEER 2)

(b)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A

© HR MR 1B [ R 4 Rz 3R] RARERT
BERMBHREER (F)

BEBUBHREERFI16% —HE
(%)

SHEBAGFHRENS - HEYE
WELAFE1CHABMATHEES
FHERIEA7IR 2 WA S RIEAR
E o Bt HEAREREEESD
BAKENENRMENE  YAY
MEEEETTRZ @5 RIE -

BB 20T E R
—tF=HA=+—H A&EEE#H
HEMEsKERERERTER
313,863,000 % 7T ° & % If & 78 Hf
FRNE A B ImELERFE 165 AR
MR T BUER S H AR & E I 75
RBREATE BEBZEHAE
EREZETHBOBEUEE(F
R kemaE(ENE®R) ER
RGBSR Rk P R o

AEE BN EMHAETREERTE
B mEER LR TIARR -
AREBRIEF G Lt 35T REER]
BV BREEN 2FE - Lt
AN - ERTAHREAEMHET
MBI B EM B RS LTS
AEBZHBHRRBUEATE -

105

ANNUAL REPORT 2017




P S EE NG D)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in

the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition
or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(a2 maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1
January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied HKFRS
3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance with the
transition requirements in the standard. Such balances
are not adjusted upon first application of the standard.
Subsequent revisions to estimates of such consideration
are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business
combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

4.2

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

tHF=A=+—BLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

BE-_T—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.3

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate
has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets (note 4.17).

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 3

4, FTESHBEREE 2

4.3

BE AT

BENRIEAREEHEITEEX
TR MAFMBARKNEGE
RH 2B - EAFENET2A
WIE T 2 M5 R EBERR ZIRE
BRI AREGZERE
=PI

BERRIAREEAR - REER
% WEVRIARARER - 2%
HEE S BRBEAREERBERD
15%%%”&7%2‘%@@9’] """"" BETH

EBRAKEERE QAR T

*E SHERRT SRR RIEFR
BEMARERE - AERR -

AEBREEBERNE ZENRZHH
F%E’JT@&LE% PAHERR, - BfERR

BREREECH E QR 2 -
REERIGEEARERHMELNE
AR & X B8 5 BEEE 8 N R Y BR TE

B - WABERBRRERMEE
BEZRERERE - RIMAINMEER

(EROE G VNP N FERN S
BREFFREBR AT BRIEE - BE
EHARBEBN AR ENTDE TN
iﬁﬁﬂ: WA ABE RARIMERE S

o fi B F B R IR BRI B 2 R A

z&éaﬁ«ma ARENERm S
HeNREMIESREERRNT

NETRERR (fE4.17) -



B 75 ¥ = Y it

(#&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-Z

—tF=ZA=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
it operates) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the
end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

tHF=A=+—BLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4

Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as exchange reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of
long-term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
foreign exchange reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-Z

—tF=ZA=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is

provided to write off the cost less their estimated

residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the

straight-line method, as follows:

Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years

Fixtures 5 to 10 years or over
the term of lease,
whichever is shorter

Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation

methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

period.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6 Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units (the “CGUs”) that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, by comparing its carrying
amount with its recoverable amount (see note 4.17),
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6 Goodwill (Continued)

4.7

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets
of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount
to each asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to
each asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying
amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Other intangible asset (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible asset is recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible asset with finite useful
life is carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible asset
with finite useful life is provided on a straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use. The
following useful life is applied:
Trademark 10 years

Other intangible asset is tested for impairment as
described in note 4.17.

4, FTESHHERME 2

4.6

4.7

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A

B (E)

AR B EENETWEMELZ
BEMS  BoEBEIREES
B ENZMERFEERAETR
BAR - ERSELEL 2 AIHKE
SRR ZEMRE SRR - BE
B8 8 8 %D B AMURZ B E D
F2EAmB 2 RMERE  EmE
RZBEMABTEEZREASRIZL
PInEZEMLZEMBERE - R
- AEEREEZBETESE
MEEZEASBBREERERR
BEREERA (T2 ) S EEA
BEAEE) ARGERE) -
BEZEMREBERBDRE
R MAERERABED -

HEHEMBARIEK  FEHEZ
W ER SR - Mt B2
ERNCEHBELHE -

HitvBLEE (PR E U

WREFT 15 2 BT B B A AP 1R K 7R T
R NYILHERE - AERAFHAE
PR 2 ST A E IR AR R AT 8
R ERESE - AIEAFHE
PR B EEREGRENEGEA
FRFEAREE - EmEEERH#
EFRRFGHESH - FTRZAIE RS
B -
P 104

HAub & EAMGE 417 Pz 75
TETTRERIE ©

115

ANNUAL REPORT 2017




B FE AR My EE (F8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Financial assets are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase
or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows in relation to the
financial asset expire or are transferred and substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through the
provision of goods and services to customers (trade
debtors), and also incorporate other types of contractual
monetary asset. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4, TESTHHERME 2

48 TREEE)

4.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets other
than financial assets at FVTPL are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

= significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measureable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8

4.9

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Financial assets other than trade receivables that
are stated at amortised cost, impairment losses are
written off against the corresponding assets directly.
Where the recovery of trade receivables is considered
doubtful but not remote, the impairment losses for
doubtful receivables are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery of
trade receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
in respect of that receivable are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of automobiles, watches and
jewelleries included in the inventories are determined
using the first-in, first-out method while the other
inventories with different nature are determined using the
weighted average basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
accrued charges and other payables, amounts due
to related parties and non-controlling interests and
borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 4.16).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.11

4.12

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

Other financial liabilities

These include trade and other payables, accrued charges
and amounts due to subsidiaries, related parties and
non-controlling interests and are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Leases (Continued)

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(a) Operating lease charges as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature of
the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on the straight-
line method over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

(b) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rental are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4, FTESHHERME 2

4.13 B - IREERIREE

4.13 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

4.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

tH=A=+—BLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

BE-T—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.15

4.16

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable for the sale of goods, rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest and dividends, net of returns and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:

Sale of goods is recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to customer.
This is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the goods.

Services income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line method
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-Z

—tF=ZA=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible asset, property, plant and equipment and
interests in subsidiaries and an associate are subject to
impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at CGU level. Goodwill in particular is
allocated to those CGUs that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.17 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised for a CGU, to which goodwill
has been allocated, is credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU, except
that the carrying amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal, or
value-in-use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4, TESTHHERME 2

4.18 Employee benefits 4.18 EERA

(a) Retirement benefits (a) ZEUKEF

(b)

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees render services during
the year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions
payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of
its employees. All employee services received
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset,
with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of equity instruments that are
expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number
of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.

At the time when the share options have exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to share premium. After
vesting date, when the vested share options have
forfeited or still have not been exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve is transferred to contributed
surplus.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-Z

—tF=ZA=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

tHF=A=+—BLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

BE-_T—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(o) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(o) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

()  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—tF=ZA=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

BE-Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except bank interest income, income tax expense,
finance costs, net realised gains on derivative financial
instruments, share of profit of an associate and other
corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not included in arriving at the operating

results of the operating segment.

Segment assets exclude investment in an associate and
other corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to the
Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude provision for taxation,
deferred tax liabilities and borrowings and other
corporate liabilities which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment and are
not allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FEETBERME®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.21 Related parties 4.21 @EAT
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is MABHmEMmMs - WEBEATA
considered to be related to the Group if: T ZATEIWRAEASEEEH
JH
(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family i) (WEBATAL  BIEZALEK
is related to the Group if that person: HEZ ATHEERY ZREK
B HARE[E B e
(a) has control or joint control over the Group; (@) =l ek HEIE B A&
H
(b) has significant influence over the Group; or b) BHAEBEEEAZE
75k
(c) is a member of key management personnel of ) RAEEARNF]
the Group or the Company’s parent. AIZEEEERAE °
(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (i) (EFFE THERMEME - Bl
following conditions apply: ERHEASEGHE
(@) The entity and the Group are members of the (@ REEEASEER-—
same group (which means that each parent, SE2KE(AIZER
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to IR PAGIAEEY]
the others). BARMILHEERE) o
(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture b) —BEAZS—EBEZH
of the other entity (or an associate or joint EARRAEE AR (3K
venture of a member of a group of which the S—EBEAEKEANTZ
other entity is a member). SEETKE QR 2B
ERRISEERT) o
(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same © MREEHER—F=
third party. HZEENT

Z SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4, FTESHBEREE 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.21 Related parties (Continued) 4.21 BEAL ()
(i)  (Continued) iy (%)

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (d) BERE—F=7EE
and the other entity is an associate of the third ZEENR MBR—&
entity. BAZE=HEB

VNI

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan ) ZEBAAEENAS
for the benefit of the employees of the Group EiEEE S 2 E BB
or an entity related to the Group. BEFETE

()  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (H HEEX()EMMAL
a person identified in (i). Pk AL RS o

(@) A person identifies in (i)(a) has significant (@ R ()(a)BFTiiALTHE
influence over the entity or is a member of key BEEATE NSEZ
management personnel of the entity (or of a BEE(ZEE2 28N
parent of the entity). AN ZEBEEBAS -

(h) The entity, or any member of a group of h ZER(KZEEFB
which it is a part, provides key management EEZEMKE) @A
personnel services to the Group or to the KBS AREE 2 & AF]
parent of the Group. REFTETEEABR

ﬁ% o

Close members of the family of a person are those family BEERATERZI 2 REKE T
members who may be expected to influence, or be IR EZATEHER 2R
influence by, that person in their dealings with the entity SRUXEZE BB UBE
and include:
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic @ ZALTZTFLZEE®KREE

partner; #1E
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic b) ZALZEBKRAEHEZ

partner; and F Rk
(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse € mATHHBEBKEEFE

or domestic partner. ZXENAN -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-Z

—tF=ZA=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5.

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(@) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 4.17. This requires an estimate of
the value-in-use of the CGU to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the CGUs and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. BREe:r{4stRAE =)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any indication that other non-financial
assets with definite lives may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the assets in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 4.17. In assessing whether there
is any indication that other non-financial assets may
be impaired, the Group considers indications from
both internal and external sources of information such
as evidence of obsolescence or decline in economic
performance of the assets, changes in market conditions,
economic environment and customers’ tastes. These
assessments are subjective and require management’s
judgements and estimations.

Impairment of receivables

The policy for making allowance for impairment of
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of the receivables
and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer/debtor. If the financial conditions
of the customers/debtors of the Group deteriorate
thus resulting in impairment as to their ability to make
payments, additional allowance for impairment may be
required. If the financial conditions of the customers/
debtors of the Group, on whose account allowance
for impairment has been made, were improved and no
impairment of their ability to make payments were noted,
reversal of allowance for impairment may be required.

(b)

(c)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 &£ B A R A A

HibkeMEEZRE

AEEREREARFEEERTE
FHZHEMIFSREEGDHIE
R E IR © fisl 77 7] 3% F BF
R ARESREN 417 Z
SR BRABEEZARESHE
AR EMIFEREER T HERE
PR - NEEEZERE AR RN
MERKRZIR - PIANEEREZE
LB R N BZBBARTSE
N REREREFPEN2BE -
ZEFEBIBMYE  ABTEER
7 B fh

P& W SRR R B

AR B2 FE MR IRURL (B ZE R B SR A
FE M R IR 2 A] Ye B A2 AT A B AR iR
DITARERE 2 HIE R - ¥
B F R IR 2 &R B HER
{EHABHE - BESRF B
ABRIZERBREBEERE
B - MARERS MEBAZHH
R B - EBUEE FREE N KAl
55 RIRJREZR/EREINBELER - &
AEEEHEF MEBAZRRIE
HIRE R - IEB IR E -
BERENARRHIES - BRI gE/AR
BlR B2 -

135

ANNUAL REPORT 2017




B FE AR My EE (F8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. BEREe:r{4stRAE =)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Provision for inventories

The management reviews the inventories at the end
of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
impairment of obsolete, slow-moving and impaired items.
The management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the expected
future market conditions and the estimated selling price.
The Group makes allowance for impairment if the net
realisable value is below the carrying amount.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other jurisdictions in which the
Group operates. Significant management judgement
is required in interpreting the relevant tax rules and
regulations and determining the amount of the provision
for income taxes and the timing of payment of related
taxes. There could have transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain in
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-Z

—tF=ZA=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with internal reporting provided to executive directors of the

Company who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.

The executive directors have identified the following reportable
operating segments:

(i)

Automobiles — Distribution of branded automobiles,
namely Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce and
provision of related after-sales services;

Branded watches and jewelleries — Distribution of
branded watches, namely Richard Mille, DeWitt,
Parmigiani, DeLaCour and Buben & Zorweg, and
distribution of branded jewelleries, namely Boucheron

and Royal Asscher; and

Others — Distribution of certain brands of fine wines,
audio equipment, menswear apparels and accessories
and cigars and smoker’s accessories.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately

as each of the product and service lines requires different

resources as well as marketing approaches.
transactions,

Inter-segment
if any, are priced with reference to prices

charged to external parties for similar transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+tHF=—A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DWER @)
2017
—E—tF
Branded
watches and
Automobiles jewelleries Others Total
BRFHER
AE e Hite G
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER FTET FTAEL
Revenue from external customers REIMBEP 2 Wi 2,519,181 126,469 135,572 2,781,222
Other income and net gains H AR a5 60,467 2,803 3,475 66,745
Reportable segment revenue A E D P EE 2,579,648 129,272 139,047 2,847,967
Reportable segment results TRETDERE 165,722 (12,531) (7,957) 145,234
Amortisation of other intangible asset  Eh B E = (78) - (78)
Depreciation of property, MmE - KB KRR
plant and equipment ZIE (18,585) (714) (1,827) (21,126)
Write-down of inventories FEMR (176) - (5,608) (5,784)
Reversal of write-down of inventories  BEIFSHUA 2,627 - - 2,627
Operating lease payments in respect ~ HEEF 2 8%
of rented premises HERE (42,947) (18,777) (17,413) (79,137)
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 1,190,756 277,026 190,346 1,658,128
Investment in an associate R—EBERAZRE 660,075
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFBERE 36,918
Deposits, prepayments and e BEFHER
other receivables H U IR 2,966
Other corporate assets: HttREEE
- financial assets -SHEE 4,450
- non-financial assets - FEREE 3,797
Consolidated total assets SABBE 2,366,334
Additions to non-current segment FRRE
assets during the year ERBDBDEE 12,100 361 3,185 15,646
Reportable segment liabilities REDHAE 125,505 8,779 38,112 172,396
Borrowings & 396,377
Other corporate liabilities: HitARGRE
~ financial liabilities - 2RBR 5,136
- non-financial liabilities -keRmAR 4,598
Consolidated total liabilities SEBAR 578,507

1 3 8 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERE
2016
ZERE
Branded
watches and
Automobiles jewelleries Others Total
BREFER
AE HE Hith A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET TAET FET
Revenue from external customers RENDEE 2 Wix 2,178,862 127,197 70,845 2,376,904
Other income and net gains HAA R %58 64,430 12,746 14,095 91,271
Reportable segment revenue EES SR 2,243,292 139,943 84,940 2,468,175
Reportable segment results TRETDERE 53,185 (22,282) (14,023) 16,880
Amortisation of other intangible asset ~ EhE B E & = (78) - (78)
Depreciation of property, ME - ERREE
plant and equipment ZIE (24,289) (421) (1,035) (25,745)
Write-down of inventories FEMR (2,963) = = (2,963)
Operating lease payments in respect ~ HEEF 7 KELHRE
of rented premises FR (45,334) (38,784) (30,186) (114,304)
Sub-lease income AHEBA - 10,871 10,445 21,316
Reportable segment assets ARENBEE 1,155,480 384,823 181,934 1,722,237
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERE 657
Deposits, prepayments and e BERER
other receivables H IR 3,846
Other corporate assets: HAREE
- financial assets -SHEE 4,827
- non-financial assets -FEREE 3,939
Consolidated total assets REBMEE 1,735,506
Additions to non-current segment FRRE
assets during the year ERBDBEE 3,425 235 127 3,787
Reportable segment liabilities ARENHEE 105,044 23,912 27,658 156,614
Borrowings (Y 488,740
Other corporate liabilities: HEAeafE
~ financial liabilities - 2RBR 1,932
- non-financial liabilities - FERBRE 4,494
Consolidated total liabilities SEBAR 651,780
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2# & E AR A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-T—

tH=A=+—BLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Unallocated corporate income mainly comprised income
from advertising, exhibitions and other services, consultancy
and referral fee income and gain on disposals of property,
plant and equipment. Unallocated corporate expenses
mainly comprised employee benefits expense (including
directors’ emoluments), operating lease expenses, auditor’s
remuneration and other centralised administrative costs of the
Group’s headquarter which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment.

A reconciliation between the reportable segment results and
the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax is as follows:

D EBE R ()

APERFAIRAZTERREES  RE
H AR IS U ‘”E’@&Lﬁ%ﬁﬂ&)\&ﬁ
EWE - HEkREZKE - ROE
AR EZEREERIA (BRES
M)  KREBEFRT  ZBEHS AR
AEBENLIFEERFBNEAZED
BERBEB < EMRRITHER -

Al R 0 B AR AN R B 2 B P AS B AT
A, (B8 BRI T

2017 2016

—E—tHF —FE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Reportable segment results A ¥R E0ELE 145,234 16,880

Bank interest income RITHI S A 586 1,869

Unallocated corporate income ROBERA R HA 2,169 28,871
Net realised gains on derivative 0 Eiwﬂlﬁz

financial instruments B IR S R = 368

Share of profit of an associate J,E{E—Fsﬁ Bt & 2 5 A 507 -

Unallocated corporate expenses P2l /NG 3 (41,858) (31,855)

Finance costs A& A (15,725) (49,326)

Profit/(loss) before income tax MET SR AR (ER) 90,913 (33,193)

The following tables set out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers
and (i) the Group’s non-current assets other than financial
instruments (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which the
goods were delivered or the services were provided. The
geographical location of goodwill, other intangible asset and
investment in an associate is based on the entities’ area of
operation while that of other non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets. Management determines
that the Group is domiciled in Mainland China and Hong Kong,
which are the Group’s principal operating locations.

1 40 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZEER#®)
The geographical analysis of revenue from external customers KEIIBEERHWR MIEEIERDEE
and specified non-current assets are as follows: A AT AT
Revenue from external Specified non-current
customers assets
REIEEF K= EEFRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016

—E2—tF —FT—FRF ZZE—t§F =—ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T T THET FATT
Mainland China and R [ A 3 %

Hong Kong (domicile) BB (FTEH) 2,658,778 2,255,102 297,526 313,194
Malaysia 5 2R 7 0n 122,444 121,802 472 550
Denmark 2 - - 660,075 -

2,781,222 2,376,904 958,073 313,744
7. REVENUE 7. kHF
The Group’s principal activities are sale of automobiles, NEB ZIFEEXEKRBRE BEFHER
branded watches and jewelleries and other merchandised IRE N EMEmEE AR TERE
goods and provision of automobile related after-sales services. EBRE ENERRLANEFTESE
Revenue from the Group’s principal activities recognised WS
during the year is as follows:
2017 2016
—2—+F —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Sale of automobiles HEHE 2,395,631 2,041,611
Sale of branded watches ZEFE R

and jewelleries HREHE 126,469 127,197
Sale of other merchandised goods HEapmiEeE 135,572 70,845
Income from provision of IR E1Z RS

after-sales services Z WA 123,550 137,251

2,781,222 2,376,904
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2 % £ B 45 /R A 7)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

OTHER INCOME AND NET GAINS HMm AR W= FRE
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Bank interest income RITFI B A 586 1,869
Bonus from suppliers L rER s T 2 ik 14,281 26,378
Net realised gains on derivative TESmIAZ
financial instruments BB s F R = 368
Gain on disposals of property, HEYZE -« R
plant and equipment e 2 Wies 1,514 2,679
Income from advertising, exhibitions &% - EE
and other services E@HE%‘%H&U\ 7,044 14,481
Income from insurance brokerage (RERAE 42 YA 41,617 31,468
Sub-lease income ?HHQ)\ - 21,316
Consultancy and referral fee income” i REN U A" - 19,512
Management fee income EEEWA 1,160 1,808
Administrative fee income THRERA 357 -
Others Hit 2,941 2,500
69,500 122,379

A

N BECZ-ARFZA=THIEFED
BIE — W ER BN EITRIRHES
RN R ZWA -

The amount for the year ended 31 March 2016 represented
income from provision of consultancy and referral services in
relation to an overseas distribution right of a motion picture.

142 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A& R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

rERMEME, (GEA) A TEER

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FATT
Amortisation of other intangible asset’ H fih 2 & = #E44 * 78 78
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN & 1,680 1,550
Cost of inventories recognised BRARI 2 FEERAE
as expense, including BIE 2,411,756 2,180,163
— Write-down of inventories - TFEHUR 5,784 2,963
— Reversal of write-down - BB EHMOR
of inventories (2,627) -
Depreciation of property, Wi - MBS AR
plant and equipment® ZIEM 21,948 26,560
Exchange differences, net B FER 2,096 945
Net realised gains on derivative TESmI A
financial instruments*** B2 e F 5 — (368)
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - #a3 Rk
plant and equipment Bl 2 Wes (1,514) (2,679)
Operating lease payments in respect FHEEFZ
of rented premises RETHE NIE 91,813 127,374
Employee benefit expense (Note 13) {EB@HME = (Hizr13) 45,603 44,128

# Amortisation of other intangible asset has been included in

administrative expenses.

i Depreciation of approximately HK$20,455,000 and HK$1,493,000
(2016: HK$22,560,000 and HK$4,000,000) have been included
in selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses
respectively.

" The amount has been included in other income and net gains.

! Hib B EE# O ATTRER -

”‘* #920,455,0007% 7T K& 1,493,000/ 7T

— & — X 4 : 22,560,000/8 7T K&

4,000,000 B7C) I EL D RIFTAHEE &
RIBERAARITHER -

M BRI AHMMA R G o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. AE A

2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T T
Interest on bank loans and overdraft RITERREZFE 11,327 31,309
Interest on other loans H A E R 2 4,398 18,017
15,725 49,326

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FIEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EBFNEHDIBBEARNEE 2 (@5 R
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. B % A 3% T R16.5% ( — 8 — N & -

16.5% ) 5T IR ©

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to REE 2 AR B A BB A R AR B K
income tax at the rate of 25% except that a subsidiary is 5% WMFAET - tE—HNE AR A
entitled to tax exemption for the year ended 31 March 2017. BREBMEE T —tF=A=1+—

HIEFEZHIA -

Income tax of certain subsidiaries of the Company in Malaysia RRABIETHRAEMBERR ZAER
is charged at 3% on the assessable profit for the year or a fixed RN E R AR T 1M 3% 5% 20,000 55 2K 78
amount of Malaysian Ringgit 20,000, whichever is lower. S EZEESEARKES A28 -
2017 2016
—E—tF S ANCS
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FATT
Current tax N HA R A I8
— Hong Kong - B
Charge for the year REFLH = 50
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREIL 322 =
— Other jurisdictions - EfhalAER
Charge for the year KEELH 148 398
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETL 898 49
Total current tax NEAE IR AR 1,368 497
Deferred tax (Note 28) EEF A (FizE28) (206) (10)
Total income tax expense FIfSfi X 4 sa 1,162 487

144 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 3



BrRE R M EE (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017
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1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 S8 E @)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting AR ERFEMSHR T HEeE
profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: B (E18) 2 HEER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FB T
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETISF AR F(EE) 90,913 (33,193)
Tax calculated at domestic tax RE VAR 2 RN ER
rates applicable to profit or loss ORI R E 2 FIE
in the respective jurisdictions 32,005 (1,717)
Effect of tax exemption granted —EB AR EERIER R
to a subsidiary 2 (34,095) -
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARRBEZRIGTE (6) (18)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses RAMEINS 2 B2 1,237 1,651
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERZABABIEEE
not recognised BB 5,167 3,470
Tax effect of temporary differences RIER z@m%@zz
not recognised T 75 86 741
Tax effect of utilisation of tax @Jﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁ?ﬁ 2 TR E e
losses previously not recognised oo %ia A (1,646) (644)
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible B AATARER
temporary differences ZAENERER
previously not recognised Z%Ri}’&%; (2,722) (3,045)
Tax effect of share of profit & — B B = A | Al
of an associate 2GR B (84) -
Under-provision of income tax BEFEMSHEEDNR
in prior years 1,220 49
Income tax expense TS B 1,162 487
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2017

12. EEME

BE-—ZE—tHF=A=1+—HLEE

Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salaries and scheme
fees allowances contributions Total
RIREF
EEHd FERER B At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TET TET THET THET
Executive Directors: HITES
Tong Kai Lap JE R L 180 1,860 18 2,058
Zheng Hao Jiang 5T 1,980 - 23 2,003
Zhu Lei KE 840 - - 840
Non-executive Directors: FHTES
Zhang Si Jian RER 180 - - 180
Gao Yu =Y 180 - - 180
Qi Jian Wei 2R 180 - - 180
Independent Non-executive BAUFHTES :
Directors:
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo #81 180 - - 180
Lam Kwok Cheong B & 180 - - 180
Lee Thomas Kang Bor ZER 180 - - 180
Total CEl 4,080 1,860 41 5,981

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 12. EEME »)
Year ended 31 March 2016 BHE_Z—R"F=ZA=+—HLFE
Retirement
Directors’ Salaries and  benefit scheme
fees allowances contributions Total
ERER
Yok e MR FTEMERR At
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FTAT FHT
Executive Directors: HITEE
Tong Kai Lap BRI 180 1,860 18 2,058
Zheng Hao Jiang ;T 1,980 - - 1,980
Zhu Lei (appointed with effect KRB (RZEB—RE
from 1 January 2016) —A—BEZMT) 210 - - 210
Zhao Xiao Dong (resigned with ~ #/N R (RZZE—RF
effect from 1 January 2016) — A —H#E) 900 - - 900
Non-executive Directors: FEHITESE :
Zhang Si Jian REE 180 - - 180
Gao Yu =28 180 - - 180
Qi Jian Wei 2EE 180 - - 180
Independent Non-executive BUIETES :
Directors:
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo #TBTa 180 = = 180
Lam Kwok Cheong WE S 180 - - 180
Lee Thomas Kang Bor R 180 - - 180
Total S 4,350 1,860 18 6,228
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group PREEERN AEBTERES Y
to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the S IAEAIMAREBR SR INARNEER
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the B SE S EREE 2EE - RMES
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments ERA - SEEENENRENE T
during both years. 4w
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2 % % M 4 [R A 7
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HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

13. EERABEX

2017 2016
—ZE—tF ZE—RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T+ T
Employee costs, including EEXRAK  BREEZ=HHE
directors’ emoluments 36,821 35,198
Defined retirement benefit scheme AEREERKBEFHE B
contributions for employees 8,782 8,930
Total employee costs 1B B A BEE 45,603 44,128
(@) Five highest paid individuals (a) HENBESHAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2016: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 12 above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2016: two)
individuals during the year were as follows:

EAEBAMEaRFALTHR  EF=f

—ZE—RF =) AARREE  F
E2MEER EXHIE12HE - FAJE
NEHMM(ZF—RF: M) ALz
BT

2017 2016

—E—+tfF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET AT

Salaries and other benefits e N EHAMEF 1,920 2,245
Retirement benefit scheme

contributions BRINEFFT B 5K 58 30

1,978 2,275

The emoluments payable to the non-director highest paid
individuals fell within the following bands:

BNTHEERRFALZMENFT
SR -

2017 2016

—E—tfF ZE-REF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000 % 7T 1 -

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8cE 1 2
1,500,000 7T

2 2

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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BE-Z

13.

14.

15.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued)

(b) The emoluments for senior management fell within the
following bands:

—tF=ZA=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

13.

EBEEERBEX #)

(b) SREBEBzBENFTIIER

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF
Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T 7 1

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8L E

1,500,000 7T 1 2

8 3

The number of senior management above included a
senior management personnel which was assigned and
resigned during the year ended 31 March 2017.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed by the Group in
respect of the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$87,845,000 (2016: loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$32,328,000) by the weighted
average of 3,317,114,634 (2016: 2,979,828,850) ordinary
shares in issue during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share are the same as basic
earnings/(loss) per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares in existence during the years.

14.

15.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A

LSRR EREAEBREREES
—+tF=ZA=+—HIFEREHLK X
BAN— 2R EREAES -

Hﬁ /%\

AEBIERBE_T—tFR_-F
—RF=ZA=+—HIEFERRT T
B EMRE o

ZRER,(EE)

BREARREF(BEB) EBBEZE

—+F=A=+—HALLFELRF]
WA A FEAEE F#987,845,000% 7T (=
T—RNF: ARRBEBABEBELY
32,328,000 8 7T ) Bk LA B 2517 X B AR N

T 83,317,114,634 % ( —F — /N 4F -
2,979,828,850 %) 5t & o
HRZEFET EBEHE LA - K

FhR#EERTN,( Eﬁ%ﬁ)iﬁiﬂx%$%
M,/ (&#HE)HER -
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HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y13 - WERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and

equipment Motor vehicles Total
R RER
i ks A3t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FATT T TT FATT
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—HFEMA—H
Cost %N 264,301 66,741 331,042
Accumulated depreciation EEITE RE
and impairment (1583,663) (26,152) (179,815)
Net carrying amount EEEEEE 110,638 40,589 151,227
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-ZE—XE
:H :+ —H .Itﬂzg
Opening net carrying amount FYIERME)FEE 110,638 40,589 151,227
Exchange differences MEH =5 (5,002) (1,762) (6,764)
Additions NE 3,787 — 3,787
Disposals & = (14,667) (14,667)
Depreciation e (18,141) (8,419) (26,560)
Closing net carrying amount S AKREZFH 91,282 15,741 107,023
At 31 March 2016 and R-ZE—XRE
1 April 2016 =B=+-—H
E—ZE—XREHQ
Cost B AN 255,818 33,800 289,618
Accumulated depreciation 2T ERRE
and impairment (164,536) (18,059) (182,595)
Net carrying amount RESHE 91,282 15,741 107,023

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - HERRE @)
(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
Bl KER
B4 HE &ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 T TFE T T T
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-_Z—t#F&
=ZEA=+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FHREEEE 91,282 15,741 107,023
Exchange differences PE R Z=58 (4,713) (800) (5,513)
Additions N=T 8,144 8,381 16,525
Disposals ank= (631) (4,101) (4,732)
Depreciation e (18,171) (3,777) (21,948)
Closing net carrying amount  FARMEFE 75,911 15,444 91,355
At 31 March 2017 R-ZB—+tF
=A=+—8
Cost pA 249,315 30,527 279,842
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE RRE
and impairment (173,404) (15,083) (188,487)
Net carrying amount AR F 5 75,911 15,444 91,355

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A 1 5 1
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HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

17. GOODWILL 17. B8

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as
follows:

B ZBREFEA DT

2017 2016

—E—+tF T —RHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T T

Gross carrying amount AR 42 %8 580,679 580,679
Accumulated impairment ZETRE (374,508) (374,508)
Net carrying amount BRTEFRR 206,171 206,171

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any allowance
for impairment, is allocated to the CGU of the automobile
business (the “Automobiles CGU”).

The recoverable amount of the Automobiles CGU was
determined based on the value-in-use calculation using pre-
tax cash flow projections from formally approved budgets
covering a detailed five-year budget plan, followed by an
extrapolation of expected cash flows at zero percent growth,
which do not exceed the long-term growth rate for the
business in which the Automobiles CGU operates. The growth
rate reflects the long-term estimated average growth rates for
the product lines of the CGU.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are:

?ﬁgﬁzﬁﬁﬁégﬁfﬁ@ﬂ B (DR E 1R
REABRHKIREEEEM([TE
fﬁi&%iuﬁ

iﬁiiﬁéﬁiﬁﬁzﬁj%ﬁﬁ%’ﬁﬂﬁzﬁ
REEFEZE  KRAEEAMERSE

H 2 BATIR & & TR @@%ngﬁi
FRHEEE]) - WKIEE 0% 2 BRE (18
RETHEBTERSELBEUR **Z%
5E ° ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ&@ﬁ%ﬁ@éiiué
miRZ REMTFIHERE -

EREEFEZIZRRET

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

Growth rate after five-year period hFEHE 2R E 0% 0%
Discount rate AL IH & 14.2% 14.7%

The key assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and its expectations for the market’s share
after taking into consideration published market forecast and
research. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the Automobiles CGU.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value-in-use of the Automobiles CGU above, the Group’s
management is not currently aware of any other possible
changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates.

1 5 2 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET

18. HthEFEE

Trademark
5k
HK$’'000
FET
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—HFWMAB—H
Gross carrying amount FREERE 33,163
Accumulated amortisation and impairment S5t MORE (82,535)
Net carrying amount REFEE 628
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-ZT-XRXF=ZA=+—-HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount FYREFEE 628
Amortisation charge BT (78)
Closing net carrying amount FRIEEZE 550
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 R-ZEBE—XRE=ZA=+—H8K
—ZE-XEWMA—H
Gross carrying amount BRE &R 33,163
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ST RO E (32,613)
Net carrying amount BRTH R &8 550
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-_Z—tH=A=1+—HILEE
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 550
Amortisation charge BT (78)
Closing net carrying amount FRIREFE 472
At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—tHF=A=+—H
Gross carrying amount ARE42%8 33,163
Accumulated amortisation and impairment St MR E (32,691)
Net carrying amount BRTH R &8 472

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A 1 5 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R—EBE QA RAZRE
2017 2016
—E2-—+tF —ET—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T TT
Acquisition of an associate Wi — [ & A A 653,576 -
Share of profit of an associate D4l — FE B & R B A 507 =
Share of other comprehensive income 71 — &8 = A a] H Aty
of an associate ZHEKRA (85) -
Share of other reserve of an associate 9 — B & A & H fth (4 203 =
Exchange differences e ZE%R 5,874 =
At 31 March R=A=+—H 660,075 -
Particulars of the associate are as follows: /Nl = R
Percentage
of effective
Place/country of interest
incorporation and Issued and held by the
Name kind of legal entity paid-up capital Company Principal activities
AR BX ERTREAR KRB R
=L REEBRER BEhEx EBEREZAIL FEEHR
Bang & Olufsen Denmark, limited Danish Krone 15.09%*  Design, manufacture, market and
A/S (“B&O”) liability company 431,974,780 sale of branded audio and visual
consumer electronics products
Bang & Olufsen 2 ERET LA 431,974,780 15.09%*  &it - & HEREEmET SR
A/S(IB&O)J) FHEE 5 BA BEETEm

The Group completed its acquisition of approximately 15.09%
shareholding in B&O on 16 December 2016. With the Group’s
presence on the board of directors of B&O and participation in the
financial and operating policies decisions of B&O, the Directors
consider that the Group could exercise significant influence over
B&O and accordingly the investment is accounted for as an

R=ZT—RNFE+=A+A  KEEE
UL IS B&O %7 15.09% A% HE - JHEEANE
EABROE F & H AL & £ EEBROET 5

MSEHERTE BERE - AEETA
HBROMTHEEARTES - MIEEE—
B)ENCIPNE S

associate.
B&O is a listed entity in Denmark and the fair value of the BROANEW FHAR  RZE—+4F
Group’s interest in B&O is approximately HK$704,612,000 as =A=1+—8 AEERBIOERZA

at 31 March 2017.

1 54 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19. A—REBE AR ZRE #)

B&O’s most recently available and published financial
information were drawn up to 28 February 2017. In applying
the equity method to prepare the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has used the financial information
of B&O for the three months ended 28 February 2017 as
contained in B&O’s published interim report dated 7 April 2017
(“B&QO’s interim financial information”), taking into account any
differences in accounting policies as adopted by the Company
and B&O and any significant events or transactions of B&O
in the fifteen days pre-acquisition period included in B&O’s
interim financial information and in March 2017. As such,
the Group has taken advantage of the provision contained
in HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
whereby it is permitted to include the attributable share of
associates’ results based on accounts drawn up to a non-
coterminous period end where the difference must be no
greater than three months.

BAOFIM BRI 1S R E T B E R o5t
HE_ZT—+F-_A=+/\B - REA
Ba iRV BRERN - A5ED
RABMOR—_ZE—+FMALHTIEZ
PHIREMHBIONEE-T—+F =
BA=+N\BLE=M@AZHBHER ([B&O
RHEB B ER ) - R RARA A HA
BROBRMZ B BR 2 EMERZUR
BRO A B&O  HAB 5 & #t AT E Uk 8 A Al
HNTARKRZZE—tF=A2EME
REHSIXZS - Alt - AEEEHEMNSE
BRI ERNE 28 RBE NI RE &1
EREE G - B EEER
A& N BN REE B (BEETEHE
B=EA)ZKE AEEZ HIEHE AR
L ELE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the associate and reconciled to the carrying

amount in the consolidated financial statements:

19. A—EBE QAR 2BRE ®)

TRIRBERRZHBENRE - I

B A M HRERANREELR

2017 2016
—B—tF A
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TAT
Current assets mENEE 2,294,096 -
Non-current assets EmEEE 995,008 -
Current liabilities mENBE 977,088 -
Non-current liabilities EREEE 419,216 -
Net assets BEFE 1,892,800 -
Reconciliation to the Group’s HEAEBRBEE QT
interest in the associate 2R ZHER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7N & 7 % 4 # t 1l 15.09% -
Group’s share of net assets of the ANER B (LB E A A
associate, excluding goodwill BEFE(TEE
recognised by the Group REBEHERZEE) 285,624 -
Goodwill on acquisition WESEE A 2 P 374,451 =
Carrying amount of the investment K& RMEE 660,075 —
Other disclosures Hik =
Revenue & 880,432 -
Profit for the period HA A Y4 ) 3,360 -
Other comprehensive income HizmmlA (560) -
Total comprehensive income FEWALRE 2,800 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

20. BALANCES WITH NON-CONTROLLING 20. SEFERES BREALTZE
INTERESTS/RELATED PARTIES 8

(a)

(b)

Balances with non-controlling interests

As at 31 March 2016, the amount due from a non-
controlling interest, representing capital contributions
receivable from the non-controlling interest of Sparkle
Roll Cigars Holding Limited (“Sparkle Roll Cigars”),
is unsecured, interest-free and receivable before
September 2017. Such contributions have been fully
settled as of 31 March 2017.

The amounts due to non-controlling interests are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Rental deposits paid to a related party

The Group entered into several agreements with Mr.
Qi Jian Hong (“Mr. Qi”), a substantial shareholder
of the Company, for leasing of properties as office
premises, warehouse and showrooms in Mainland
China to the Group. The rental deposits paid to Mr. Qi
of HK$15,101,000 (2016: HK$17,554,000) have been
recognised as non-current assets as at 31 March 2017.

(a)

(b)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A

BESFIE IR R 2 AR BR

RZF-—RF=ZA=1—8 Bl
TR AR 2 IR R B WO AR B hn 2
BRAEBR DR (MBS ) FEEARE
@8 REEAR  RERER
—tEFNARKER - ZEED
RIB—tF=A=+—BEEE

o

F‘1‘J‘3H'”“H§T2E”ﬁn%’x BREEMA -
KB BERER

EN—EBEALTHSES

REBMBEANTZ EBIRRFEEZI
EE(TRLEE)RANEBHES
FAIR R B At 2 MEERAE
EERREFINZE R - BEJEE
% 2 & %€ 15,101,000 JT
(ZZ—75%F 17,554,000 7C) B
R-BE—tF=ZA=1+—HBHERSE
JERMBEE ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

20. BALANCES WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS/RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(c)

Balances with related parties

20. SEFFIERER BEALTZE

£ (&)

(c) SREEALZ&H

Maximum Maximum
balance As at 31 balance
outstanding  March 2016  outstanding
As at 31 during the  and 1 April during the  As at 1 April
March 2017 year 2016 prior year 2015
RZB-Xx%
ZA=t-B RE-5ER
RZE-t& RERGRE R-Z-RE B R-Z-1%
SEESH REELEHR mA—-H REBLEES mA—H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE Fa T THET THET THET
Mr. Qi -3l () 15,101 17,561 17,561 18,000 18,000
IREREERE FTREREEEE
AR AF (‘BJSRGB) BRAR
([e@BZ]) (i) 521 1,116 1,116 1,410 1,410
Total amounts due FElEEAT
from related parties HERE 15,622 18,677 19,410
Notes: BitaE
()  The amount due from Mr. Qi, resulting from prepaid rental () FAAEEEEETURFEA
expenses for leasing of properties as office premises, WZMEERLE  REREE
warehouse and showrooms in Mainland China to the Group, Az AeRmERELEEZ
is unsecured, interest-free and will be utilised through FHIAREER - 2 S RIGHEBE
setting off future rental expenses payable to Mr. Qi within SHR — S N PE B SE A 2 R 2R
one year. SR HAEA o
(i)  The amount due from BJSRGB (a company controlled by (i) EREEERESMEKSEER
Mr. Qi), resulting from provision of management services, is (—REBHELEEFZAR]) 25K
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. HREER  RERAREXRE
Except as mentioned above, the balances with other M ESCRraiE S o B E M REE A+ 2 A

related parties are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

21.

22,

INVENTORIES 21. &
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABTT
Raw materials and consumables R R RO FE G 26,347 22,742
Merchandised goods P 897,207 977,461
923,554 1,000,203
As at 31 March 2017, merchandised goods of approximately RZEBE—+tE=A=+—H" A=
HK$335,635,000 (2016: HK$424,569,000) have been pledged #7335,635,000/8 j;( = &E — /X F:
to secure the loan facilities (Note 27). 424,569,000/ 7C) Z B mBEEE R - LA
BSERME (MizEa7) -
TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. ERE S ™E

The Group’s trading terms with its retail customers are mainly
receipts in advance from customers or cash on delivery,
except for certain transactions with creditworthy customers
where the credit period is extendable up to 21 months,
whereas the trading terms with wholesale customers are
generally one to two months. In addition, the Group generally
provides a credit term of two to three months to automobile
manufacturers for the in-warranty after-sales services. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
trade receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the
management.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is as follows:

AEEETERZPZHNXZHEREE
REWERLERM - S TRESR
RNEFPZENR ZHESRE21EA
ZIEEH MERBERP ZENR S K
RA—BABM—=MEA < o N&E
B — R RE A 2 SR RB R TE R
EBRREME=EAZEES - ~&£H
SREERKEEWE ZHAETERE
B URHECGEEERRAKESR
RERERE - EEETHEMANE
84 o

ERNBERAHZREESRERHREH
RZERE DT

2017 2016

—E—+tfF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET THBT

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 1,161 1,736
31 - 120 days 312120 H 100 1,077
Over 120 days @120 H 5,393 5714
6,654 8,527

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. BREZNRE (2

ARG BARA AR B E R MR ERIE &
WE SRR R DM

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are
not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE-RETF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAETT

Neither past due nor impaired R HAT AR BB 6,654 7,450
Not more than 1 month past due B EIR A — (8 A - 1,077
6,654 8,527

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired

ANEE T RRE 2 B E S FIE TR B
related to certain customers from whom there was no recent AT RIWEEACZESE IR o

history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate BRI ERRE EWE S KRIETIRE
to certain independent customer which owns a good financial ETVESSERFZEBIYRF - AKX A
BEERE HRZSEHBERERE
B OARINERE N WHARKS
EARTELRE R -

background. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as the balances were settled subsequently and
there has been no recent history of default.

23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23. e  AHFTEREMERR

RECEIVABLES g
2017 2016
—E—+F TE—REF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#& T FETT
Deposits b 19,233 23,360
Prepayments B TE 39,917 39,767
Other receivables H b 8 W 5RIR 117,657 89,223
176,807 152,350

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

24. PLEDGED DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK 24. B #ER - ZRFB TR

BALANCE AND CASH AT BANKS AND IN
HAND

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. As at 31 March 2017, the deposits bore
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.00% per annum (2016:
ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% per annum) which are close to
the market interest rates.

Certain of the Group’s deposits have been pledged to secure
loan facilities granted to the Group (Note 27). The pledged
deposits will be released upon the settlement of the relevant
borrowings.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has a restricted deposit held
at a bank in Mainland China as a reserve under a litigation
claim of HK$6,180,000 (2016: Nil). The litigation relates to a
dispute on the product quality between one of the subsidiaries
of the Group and a customer in Mainland China. On 28 April
2017, a final judgement was handed down by the Xinyang
Intermediate People’s Court in Henan Province against that
subsidiary. As of the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, the Group is in the process of following the legal
procedures to settle the claim. The directors consider that the
impact of losses arising from the litigation is not significant
to the Group’s results and financial position. Accordingly, no
contingent asset, liability or provision has been accounted for
in these financial statements.

As at 31 March 2017, the cash at banks and in hand,
restricted bank balance and pledged deposits of the Group
which are dominated in RMB and held in Mainland China
were HK$193,616,000 (2016: HK$146,176,000). RMB is
not a freely convertible currency. Under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

URSBTRFERE

IRITRE 2B THIRE B RITHF KX
ZBEEE  RZBE—+EFE=A=+—
B FHRAFFENF0.01% E2.00%
(ZE2E—RF: FHMNENF001%ZE
0.35%) &t 8 » B IS HE -

AEEETRECTER AAKEE
B ERBE FERER(HE27) - BEMA
FRENMEN B RBEERARER -

R-_ZE—+tHE=ZA=+—H A4£&H
B AU R 1T R B A X R § 77 &
6,180,000 BT (=T —RF : E)ERF
NRRZFEHES -  ZHFLADNERLAEE
—HNBRAREPBRAMHN—EEFZ
MEBRERMETTZ R-ZT—tFNWm
AZ+NB - AEEEETHRARE
Be 48 2% B B 4R I B R sk BT /B 8 B BRER o
RIEETEZEVHBRERAE  A5F
FTHEBELEZBFURRZER - BF
RE ZFDEEZBRTEHAEHE
XERUBRAEEEATZE - ALt -
HREE BEIBELERNZEVH
WMEAAER o

R-T—+F=ZA=+—0  A£EN
RITERFEAS IRHRITEHBKE
ERFER (IUAARETEBRPE A
#45)/193,616,000 870 ( =ZF—7~4F ¢
146,176,000 7T) - AR TAIB B A
BREHMEY o BRIZHE A2 INEE
BIEPIREE  ESERNFESEMETE -
REBEERCERELEIINEER 2R
T AR SR BN -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

25. TRADE PAYABLES

26.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables which

25. ERESRIE

ERNBERARZRNESRERREN

based on the invoice dates as at the end of the reporting A cain I
period:

2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T
0 — 30 days 0Z30H 13,199 14,865
31 - 60 days 312 60H 2,739 952
61 — 90 days 61290 H 2,477 2,206
Over 90 days @90 H 1,516 9,421
19,931 27,444

Included in the trade payables is an amount due to an
associate of HK$10,847,000 as at 31 March 2017.

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED

R-E—tHF=A=+—H ENE
SRBBREEN—FBE R EZHIE

10,847,000 & T °

26. HWFRIE - EtERAREME

CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES NFRIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Current portion: TENEB D
Receipts in advance from customers U E F 318 111,859 104,297
Accrued charges fEstE A 3,211 1,709
Other payables H b pE{S 58 39,610 23,539
154,680 129,545
Non-current portion: FREHL :
Other payables H A FE <t 5k I8 258 273

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

27. BORROWINGS 27. B &

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FBT
Bank loans, secured and guaranteed BTEF(BEEREER) 190,263 323,397
Bank loans, secured RITER (FEM) 51,506 46,177
Bank loans, guaranteed RITEF(BER) 3,798 4,024
Other loans, secured and guaranteed HiEZ (AIKHRER) 150,810 115,142
396,377 488,740

Effective interest rates per annum ERFEFERNTF .

in the range of:

- fixed rate borrowings —EEEE 4.35% to 7.50% 4.35% to 8.00%
— variable rate borrowings —FEEE 2.27% to 2.32% 2.75% to 3.20%

At the end of the reporting period, all the borrowings were
repayable on demand or scheduled to repay within one year.

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, certain inventories (Note 21)
and bank deposits (Note 24) were pledged to secure the loan
facilities granted to the Group.

The borrowings were also subject to corporate guarantees
executed by the Company and certain subsidiaries during the
years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

RMEER - IEEEHEREREE
HIBFTR—FREE -

R-B—+tFR_FB—RF=A=+—
H - &5THFEHE21) RBITER(HET
24)BER  ERARKEERZEFRE
Z A o

REBEE-ZFT—tFR-_F—~"F=A
:JF*EUJ:EETE 1ﬁf§JTEE$ ARE
THB A BRI 2 EEEREEM -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

27. BORROWINGS (Continued) 27. BE (&)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in EBEZRESE AT ESHE :
the following currencies:

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAT
RMB AR 391,519 484,233
HK$ BT 4,858 2,960
EUR BT - 1,547
396,377 488,740
28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IEEHLR
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences EEFBNREREEL - EREHED
under the liability method at rates of taxation applicable when ERZERZERANE  RAAERE
the temporary differences are expected to reverse. R2itE -
The movement on the deferred tax liabilities during the year is BELRBRERFAZEBIAT -
as follows:
2017 2016
—B—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TABT
At beginning of the year F1) 1,036 1,046
Deferred tax credited to profit STABRR ZIELERIE
or loss (Note 11) CERED (206) (10)
At end of the year FIR 830 1,036

1 64‘ SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 08, MEERIE &)
The movement in deferred tax liabilities recognised in the FARNBERES BRI R R ER
consolidated statement of financial position during the year is MIBAREZHET
as follows:

Accelerated Temporary

tax difference on

depreciation inventories Total
FEZ

IEFIEFE EREER &t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

T T T T

At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—RFMHA—H 206 840 1,046

Credited to profit or loss FTAEZERE = (10) (10)
At 31 March 2016 and RZE—REF

1 April 2016 =A=+—-HK

—ZE-X"FWMA—H 206 830 1,036

Credited to profit or loss FFABER (206) - (206)
At 31 March 2017 R-ZB—+tF

=R=+—H - 830 830

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$22,097,000 (2016: HK$35,562,000) mainly
arising from impairment losses recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment and inventories. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is unpredictable whether taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$70,018,000 (2016:
HK$47,685,000) available for offset against future taxable
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of those subsidiaries
which incurred these estimated unused tax losses as at the
end of the reporting period. The estimated unused tax losses
arising in Mainland China of approximately HK$7,510,000
(2016: HK$8,400,000) will be expired if they are not utilised
to set off against the taxable profits within five years from the
year in which they arose under the current tax legislation in
Mainland China.

N_B—t&F=A=+—0 A&£E>
A 45 0 By 2= 222,097,000 70 (= F
— 7N 1 35,562,000/87C) EER AR
¥ BENBEARTERRZRERS
B ERNEEERE LA RRM EFA]

LAZ E AN E B = 2 7 UK - R
SEWES TR E R EZBERELER
BAE °

RIPEHR - NEB 2 G ABARE
518 4970,018,000/8 7L (=& — /N F
47,685,000/ 7T ) A] A {E K 85 K 2K JE 2%
FRah - ERNZENRERREENRSE
BErABAREBE 2B AR 2 RK
AR EBARANZE - WASE L&
BRIELEHIBEE - REFEAMIRIT
ok RABERMES 2B RSE/H
THEE 47,510,000 L ( ZF — /K45 -
8,400,000/ 70 ) AR B R E £ FE AT
AFATH - NIEEERB &R - BIE
EI|Hf -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 &£ B A R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

28.

29.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

28. IELERHIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities have not been established for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries because the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is not probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable

future. Such unremitted earnings associated with investments
in subsidiaries totalled approximately HK$924,316,000 (2016:

HK$769,054,000) as at 31 March 2017.

ERARNRESE THB AR ZKRE
B MEREZETKNA R RG
REEE - BB E B A AR AR
BFEMNZBNHEREEREEE -
R-_ZE—+tHE=ZA=+—H #HZZF
MEBARIKERBBE 2 RBEREARNEG K
%9 /924,316,000 JL( = F — /N F ¢
769,054,000787T) °

SHARE CAPITAL 29. fRZ
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
EEREE &
HK$’'000
FHIT
Authorised: EERAE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each BRMEE0.002 /8 T2 L@k
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016, R-Z—H&EWMA—H -
1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 —E—RE=ZA=1+—H"
—E-R"ENA-BE
—2—+#=A=+-A
250,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAREAN
Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each BREE0.002 B T2 LB
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and RZZE—hAEMA—AR -
1 April 2016 “E—XRE=ZA=1t—H
kZZ—RFMA—H 2,979,828,850 5,959
Issue of consideration shares Uk EE — B A R BT
upon acquisition of an associate KRERD (HEE)
(Note) 1,098,101,103 2,196
Issue of consideration shares REEEERER BT
upon acquisition of RER G (M=)
non-controlling interest (Note) 63,307,494 127
At 31 March 2017 R-B—t£=p=+-8 4,141,237,447 8,282
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

29.

30.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

On 16 December 2016, the Company issued an aggregate of
1,161,408,597 ordinary shares to SRHL, a company controlled by Mr.
Qi, for acquisitions of approximately 15.09% shareholding in B&O from
SRHL and the remaining 49% equity interest in @ &EZEE (It R) B 5%
R ER AT from Beijing Sparkle Roll Investment Limited, a company
controlled by Mr. Qi. The fair value of the consideration shares is
determined based on the closing share price of HK$0.59 per share as
at 16 December 2016. Details of the transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
are disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 20 October
2016 and 16 December 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 25
November 2016.

RESERVES

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of
shares at a price in excess of their par value per share. The
application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve arose from waiver of interest on convertible
notes by a shareholder of the Company during the year ended
31 March 2010.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares of the subsidiaries
at the date on which they were acquired by the Company and
the nominal amount of the shares issued for the acquisition
under a group reorganisation in 1997.

Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Group consists of:

(i) Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 10 August 2004, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$286,300,000 in accordance with the
provisions of Section 46 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 and transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus account
against the accumulated losses;

29.

30.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A

;& NE))
Pk :

R-_ZE—RNF+_A+H ' XAAM
BEEB(BELEEERZAR)BITEH
1,161,408,597 A% I AR + LA AR 2T AR Uk B
B&O#715.09% & # & M1t R HIEE B R
AR (A Z R WEEE EER (1t
R)ESEREAMR AR 49% BARER -
BROZAARBEDRER=ZZ2—~F+=A
+RBZHRHEER0SIBTETE - ABEX
S(MER ETRAE VAZEREZBERS)
ZHBRARRIBSHA-_T—XRF+A=-+
BR-ZZ—ARE+ZA+NBZ2AMURR
ARBE T —AE+—A=-tHAZE
KNI EE ©

fit
B AR

P tn i (B 1 F IR B B B IR E 2 B8 3
TR FES ZE(E - RINEERZE
AXARE-NN\—FRRDEF 40KE
B o

BB

BE—_T-TF=-A=1+—HLFE"
B T AR A — B BORE R Al
BREZFIBESE -

1 B sk 8

KRB 2R R AR R U B S
REBNEAZSERN 2@ EER
—NMNEFETEBEAR SWEME
TR EEME 2 ZHE -

BABRER
REEZHBABBELE

() BREARIR_Z=ZTWMFENA+
BROTZERERAFRS LARBEZ
BRRZR S ARARERARE
—NN\—FRREF 612 R E B
E %15 4 (& Bl R 4 286,300,000 75
UG WS REERERNNR ZH
AZBERER - RBE - AAFREMA
1 #4 BR 7 &) B 49 236,906,000 7 7T
LA 5 25T E5 18
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

30. RESERVES (Continued) 30. f#tE(#)

Contributed surplus (Continued)

(i)  Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 31 July 2009, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$260,000,000 and transferred the
same amount to the contributed surplus account of the
Company. On the same date, the Company applied an
amount of approximately HK$206,327,000 from the
contributed surplus account against the accumulated
losses;

(i)  Dividends paid out of contributed surplus in prior years
for a total of approximately HK$76,999,000; and

(ivy Transfers of approximately HK$1,467,000 and
HK$1,309,000 from share option reserve due to
forfeiture/lapse of share options during the years ended
31 March 2014 and 2015 respectively.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
difference arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations, The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 4.4.

Other reserve
Other reserve mainly represents:

(i)  the differences between the considerations and (a) the
carrying amount of the partial interests in subsidiaries
disposed of; and (b) the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests acquired; and

(i) share of other comprehensive income and other reserve
of an associate.

Statutory reserve

The Group’s statutory reserve represents appropriations
of profits retained by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. In
accordance with the respective articles of association of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries, they are required to appropriate
amount not less than 10% of their profits after income tax to
statutory reserve each year, until the reserve balance reaches
50% of its registered capital. Such a reserve may be used to
reduce any losses incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up
capital.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

31. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees. The Scheme was expired on 6 October 2012.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an annual
general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012, the
Company’s new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was
adopted and the Scheme was terminated.

Under the New Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible
employees, including executive directors, suppliers,
customers, advisers or consultants and joint venture partners
or business alliances of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
to subscribe for shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
Options may be exercised from the date of grant of the share
option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company
and will not be less than the highest of the closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, the
average closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options or the nominal value of the shares.

31.
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BE-Z

31. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

—tF=ZA=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

COMPENSATION (Continued)

The New Scheme shall remain valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing from 20 August 2012, being the date
on which the scheme was deemed to take effect in accordance
with the terms.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing the
Company’s ordinary shares.

There was no share option outstanding under the New Scheme
as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.

32.

(a)

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Group as lessor

In prior periods, the Group sub-leased a number of
rented premises under operating leases. These leases
run for an initial non-cancellable period of 5 years.
The rentals on these leases are calculated based on a
percentage of the relevant sales of the tenants pursuant
to the respective lease agreements. All these leases were
terminated during the year ended 31 March 2016 as
mutually agreed between the parties involved. Contingent
rents in respect of these leases recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2016 amounted to
HK$21,316,000. In March 2017, the Group entered into
a new operating lease agreement to sub-lease a rented
premise which runs for an initial non-cancellable period of
20 months and does not include contingent rental.

At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable
operating lease is as follows:

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 32. KREMERIE#)

(Continued)
(a) Group as lessor (Continued) (a) AEBEEAHBAE)
2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAEIT
Within one year —FR 32 -
In the second to fifth years inclusive —FEERF
(REEEMF) 20 -
52 -
(b) Group as lessee (b) ATEBEIERFAHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the total future REREHR - A& BIRER T A HEH

minimum lease payments payable by the Group under
non-cancellable operating leases, including operating

LETRE RN 2 RREEAEFRE
4258 (B FEMT 5F 34(b) P % B2 M) 78 222

lease commitment to related parties as disclosed in note ATER 2 EETREAE) AT -
34(b), are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T T
Within one year —F R 78,718 93,055
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2 _F &% A F
(BREEEMF) 216,538 295,207
After five years HELAE 18,607 39,429
313,863 427,691

The Group leases a number of office premises, bonded
warehouse, showrooms and staff quarters under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
one to ten years (2016: one to ten years). The actual
payments in respect of certain operating leases are
calculated at the higher of the minimum commitments
as noted in the table above and the amounts determined
based on a percentage of the sales of the related retail
shops.

AEERBELELHEHEBZ EMR AR -
®’EuEE EEREIGBS - HEW

SRB—FETH( —F

INGE =2

F)  BETREMEZERMNFINZ LR

Pt B A HE AR IEAERE T

EEHER
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A
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33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. EXRAE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FBT
Contracted but not provided for in TEEYE M NRE
respect of purchase of property, BRI AEREE
plant and equipment - 523
34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 34. BEALTIE
(a) Related party transactions (a) BEALTZXRS
During the year, except as disclosed elsewhere in these FN - BRI ER @R EMHB D
financial statements, the Group also had the following Fr# R & s - AEE TN Z EHERE A
significant transactions with related parties: THETTIERRS
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FBIT
Rental expense to Mr. Qi* XN TREEZHERE " 66,131 70,246
Consultancy fee paid to Mr. Qi* YN FEEEZERE 120 40
Management fees income RE—HEERRZ
from a related company* EEBEU A 1,160 1,808
Administrative fees income RE—HEEQRZ
from a related company* TTEER A 357 -
Purchases of goods from m—EEEARREER”
a related company* 181 -
Purchases of goods from ) —EE S QR REE R
an associate 43,189 -

* These related party transactions constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
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HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Related party transactions (Continued)

The above related party transactions are conducted in
the ordinary course of business with reference to the
terms mutually agreed between the parties.

The Group defines directors of the Company as key
management personnel and their remunerations are set
out in Note 12.

Operating lease commitment to related parties
At the end of the reporting period, the total future

minimum lease payments payable by the Group to Mr. Qi
under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows:

34. BEATHEE 2

(@) BEATZXRE(E)

BPREEAL 2R HHNBRES
BREPERETAOE T BEWE &
LT -

AEBREARNEEATEER

AB ' BEZEMENMIFE12 -

(b) REEALEHZLELEHERIE
RREHR - AEBRET A B

REHERNERE 2 KRR REA
EFCRBBEBHEIIINT

2017 2016

—E—+tfF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TFET TAT

Within one year —F R 60,404 68,571
In the second to fifth years inclusive % —&F&E A4

(BIEERME) 198,337 272,714

After five years HELE 18,607 39,429

277,348 380,714

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 &£ B A R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

173



B Fs R MY EE ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

35. TEMBLAFE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

RRARAR-_E—LF=A=+—HzZ=E

March 2017 are as follows: ZWB AR ZFBOT ¢
Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up held by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
]
AR/ HsE/ BRIRE/ fiERRER
HEAR AR AXREEERER FrRAEA BhEx BAl TEEBREEMY
Carnaby Group Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary share United States Dollar 100%"  Investment holding, BVI
(BVI"), limited liability (US$") 1
company
EBRAES BRAT EER 1357 100%" RERR ZERZES
Sparkle Roll (France) Limited BV, limited liability company ~ Ordinary share US$1 100%  Investment holding, BV
B O5R) BRAT ABRUEE  ARAA LER 1% 100% RESKR  ZERIES
Sparkle Roll Fing Wine Limited BVI, limited liability company  Ordinary share US$1 100% Trading of fine wines, Hong Kong
BREREZERAR EERAES  ARAT LRk 1% 100% ZEES &k
Sparkle Roll Motors Limited BVI, limited liability company  Ordinary share US$1 100%  Investment holding, BV
BRAEARAA EERAES  ARAT LRk 1% 100% RERR XERZES
Sparkle Roll (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$1 100% Trading of branded jewelleries and
company provision of management service,
Hong Kong
% (B7%)BRAT &% ARAA Eak 1T 100% ZRAEEAURERRERRE Bk
Sparkle Roll Aerial Advertising Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HKS1 100% Publications of magazines and
Multi-Media Limited company provision of advertising services,
Hong Kong
BREREEERERAT Bk BRAT Liak 1T 100% HikEEREEEERE - B4
Sparkle Roll Global Motors Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$151,050,000 100% Dormant, Hong Kong
Holding Limited company
BRRRAEERARAT &% BRAA EBR 151,050,000 ¢ 100% HiEg &%

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
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HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 35. TEMBLARFE @)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up held by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
]
iET/RIE/ ERfTRE/ i ERER
HEAR AR AxREERRER FERAE EhEx BAl TEXBREEME
Sparkle Roll Cigars Holding Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share US$3,000,000 50.1% Trading of cigars and smoker's
company accessories, Hong Kong
BRSMERARAA &% ARAA EaR 3,000,000%7 50.1% EMREZRAES FA
Sparkle Roll International Hong Kong, limited liability QOrdinary share HK$100 100% Trading of branded watches, fine wines
Distributions Limited company and wine futures, Hong Kong
BREBREERAA &% ARAA Rk 10047 100% £HEFsE RERGEES B3
Sparkle Roll Watch & Jewelry Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HKS$1 100% Trading of branded watches and
company branded jewelleries, Hong Kong
BRERAEARAA &% ARAF LRk 18T 100% ERFERERKEERS B
Sparkle Roll Brands Market Malaysia, limited liability Ordinary share US$100 100%  Investment holding, Malaysia
Management Limited company
BRmiEm8EERARAA SRAE  BRAT Liak 100%7T 100% RERR  SRAE
Sparkle Roll Retail Net Development  Malaysia, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Trading of branded watches and
Limited company branded jewelleries and fine wines,
Malaysia
BREEBERARAA SREE  ARAA LRk 157 100% EFF&  ARRERZEES
SRED
Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital Renminbi (‘RMB’) 100% Sales and distribution of audio and
Development Limited (‘Balanorm liability company 50,000,000 visual consumer electronics
Beo’)' (Note (a)) products, Mainland China
EEER (IR BHERARLA hENY AREELA ElER ARE 100% HERREYEHESFEM:
([ERER]) (M3 (@) 50,000,007 hEAD
Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited”  Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB101,400,000 100% Trading of automobiles and related
liability company parts and accessories and provision
of after-sales services, Mainland China
FrERREERARAT hENY AREELA ElER N 100% RERBETHRENE AN RRE
101,400,007 ERRHE pEAY
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2 % £ B 4 /R A )
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HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35. FEMBLARFE &)

Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up held by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
N
e/ RIE/ ERfTRE/ i ERER
KEAR AR AxREERRER FERAER EhEx BAl TEXBREEMY
Beiing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB194,800,000 100% Trading of automobiles and related
Trading Limited" liability company parts and accessories and provision
of after-sales services, Mainland China
IrEakA EE5ERAR hERY AREELA ElER N 100% AEREETAREEES KR
194,800,0007% ERRE pEAY
Beijing Sparkle Roll Aerial Advertising ~ Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,500,000 100% Provision of marketing and advertising
Multi-media Limited liability company services, Mainland China
IR e REEEARDA hER AREELA ElER ARE 100% RETHREERE  PEAM
49,500,000
Beijing Sparkle Roll Fu Sheng Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB5,000,000 51% Sales and distribution of apparel and
Trading Company Limited (‘Fu Sheng’)'  liability company accessories, Mainland China
YRERREEZARAR((RE])  FEAL FREELA ElER AEE b1% HERRERKRESLS - PEMD
5,000,000
Beijing Sparkle Roll Goldence Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB64,600,000 100% Provision of consultancy services,
Saga International Exhibition Limited”  liability company Mainland China
IrgRatEREneRERAT  REMY  AREFAT ElER ARE 100% FRetEARE - pERM
64,600,000
Sparkle Roll Honor Remit (Beijing) Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB17,600,000 100% Provision of exhibition and advertising
Business Club Limited" liability company services, Mainland China
BRERE(LR)AREMERAT  hEML AREELA ElER ARH 100% REREREERE  PEAM
17,600,000
Beijing Sparkle Roll Motors Insurance  Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Provision of insurance agency services,
Agency Limited! liability company Mainland China
TRBRAERRREERAR hENY BREFAA ElER AEE 100% RERBRERSE  TERD
10,000,000

1 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 & B A R A A
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 35. TEMBLARFE @)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up held by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
]
AR/ Hies/ ERfTRE/ gt Gy
HEAR AR AXREERRER FERAE LU BAl TEXBREEME
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Gai Nian Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,950,000 100%  Provision of corporate management
Business Management Limited liability company and consultancy services,
Mainland China
IRERTHOEXERAR AR mERY - ARERAT ElER ARE 100% fRfEAFERRZARE  REAM
49,950,000
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Jing Jie Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,700,000 100%  Provision of public relation and
Public Relation Planning Limited liability company marketing services, Mainland China
FRBFEAAERABRAT hEA BRERAA ElER AEH 100% SEABRRMHHRE  REAM
49,700,000
Richmile (Shanghai) Commerce & Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Trading of branded watches and
Trading Limited" liability company branded jewelleries and provision
of consultancy services,
Mainland China
WE (L) BERRAR hERL BREELA ElER ARE 100% ERFRRARAEE HUARRER
10,000,000 AR mEAD
Sparkle Roll Bo Ce Trading Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB51,900,000 100% Provision of corporate management
Development Limited liability company and consultancy services,
Mainland China
BRERESERERAT hERL AREELA AR ARE 100% RECFERREARE  PERH
51,900,000
Sparkle Roll Ding Sheng (Beijing) Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Sales and distribution of merchandised
Trading Development Limited" liability company goods, Mainland China
BkeE(tR) B HERERAT hEIA BRERAA ElExR N 100% HERREFm - FEAM
10,000,0007
Sparkle Roll Online (Bejing) Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,900,000 100%  Provision of e-commerce platform
Business Service Limited" liability company operation, Mainland China
BRES (PR BXRBEARAA hENY BREERA ElER AEH 100% REFFTAEE  PERN
49,900,000
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2 % £ B 4 /R A )
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35. FEMBLARFE &)

Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up held by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
]
AR/ Hies/ BRfTRE/ i RRER
HEAR AR AFREERRER i RA%H LU BAl TEXBREEMY
Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital HK$40,000,000 100% Trading of branded watches, branded
Trading Development Limited" liability company (wholly jewelleries and fine wines and
foreign-owned enterprise) provision of consultancy services,
Mainland China
BER7 (1) BHERARLA hENY BREERA ElER 40,000,00057 100% ERFE  ARREREEESUR
EBELE) REEARE - REAM
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Fa Xian Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,300,000 100% Trading of artwork and provision of
International Artwork Limited liability company culture and art exchange activities
(*Xin Fa Xian")'* services, Mainland China
FRBRFEREREMnARRA  ENY  AREAAT ElEx ARH 100% EfRE5NRREXERTED
(F$83))" 49,300,000 ¢ R - B
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,000,000 100%  Provision of consultancy service,
Commerce Development Limited! liability company Mainland China
PR R B RERARLA hERL AREELA ElER ARE 100% REZARE - pERH
49,000,000
Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB38,700,000 100% Trading of automobiles and related
Trading Development Limited" liability company parts and accessories and provision
of after-sales services, Mainland China
RRIERRERSERARLA hEAY BRERAA ElER N 100% AEREETHREEES LR
38,700,000 ¢ R - PERM
Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB45,000,000 100% Trading of automobiles and related
Development Limited liability company parts and accessories and provision
of after-sales services, Mainland China
RREEREEFERERAT hEAL BREELA ElER AR#® 100% AEREETAREEES N RREL
45,000,000 ¢ ElkRE AR
Boao Trading Development Limited’ ~ Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 100% Provision of exhibition and consultancy
liability company services, Mainland China
ANEBRRARLA hENY BREELA ElER ARE 100% REEREREARE  PERM
50,000,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TZ—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

+

The English names of these subsidiaries established in Mainland
China represent management’s best effort at translating the
Chinese names of these subsidiaries as no official English names
have been registered.

Directly held by the Company

On 9 June 2017, Xin Fa Xian has changed its name to Beijing Xiang
Fang Commercial Management Limited.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the

Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

Note:

(@)

On 16 December 2016, the Group acquired an additional 49%
equity interest in Balanorm Beo and settled by way of the
Company issuing 63,307,494 shares to SRHL. The fair value of
such consideration shares is HK$37,352,000, which is determined
based on the closing share price of HK$0.59 per share as at
16 December 2016. Thereafter, the Group’s equity interest in
Balanorm Beo increased from 51% to 100%. The acquisition
of the additional interest did not result in change of control of
Balanorm Beo. The carrying amount of the non-controlling interest
in Balanorm Beo on the date of acquisition was HK$14,060,000.
The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interest of
HK$14,060,000 and decrease in equity attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$23,292,000. Profit and total comprehensive
income allocated to non-controlling interest of Balanorm Beo
for the period from 1 April 2016 to 16 December 2016 were
HK$402,000 and HK$(1,042,000), respectively.

35. FEMBLARFE &)

HP % A B A A S 2 T8 A B
SEAAMEAREXER - Al ZEEX
HWBERERRABNAZENE
AR R ETEEE o

HARREERA

REZZ—FRNANA - HEREHHE
AW RILRBNRRERARAT °

ERFINARAEERREEZEASF
EEEIBNAEEEEFEEEZA D
ZARAMBAR - ARBAEERR
EREEMMBARZFHE  BTEH
BRILE °

BRI B R RN FRETEAERES

GER

REZZE—AF+-A+,A  xEEK
BEEEBEINMOBR AR - BAK
A &) [A) B B 4% A% %% 17 63,307,494 % %
B2 AANEE - ZEREBRHZAAE
/37,352,000 7T + JIRIE=T—/RF
+ZA+ABZRMESR0.59BTE
TE o 21 AEBEREHEEE ZIRAE
A 51%EE 100% © UEEREIME ST
EENEEERIT SRR ) - B
AN B B 2 e ks 2 BREE
714,060,000/ 7T © A& BERERIEER
FEZEIM 2> 14,060,00078 TC AN A B A
AE(G RS 423,292,000/ 7T - B =
T—RNFUA—BRBRE_T—XRF+=
RBT7NBHR - s 2 EIRES
ENR2afkEmBARES A
402,000 77t & (1,042,000) BT °
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36. SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- 36. BEEAREERERZZHEA
CONTROLLING INTERESTS Gl
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material TXHIINAEBR-_ZE—+F=A4
non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2017 and their =+t —HEBEREERER KB
summarised financial information are set out below. The AIFFIEAREMBERSE - FI#E 2
amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations. SRR PNETT A RIS AT < £ %8 o
Fu Sheng Sparkle Roll Cigars
{823 EBHREM
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—t& T R§ ZE—tF ZT—R¥
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET THET TET FHETT
As at 31 March R=A=+—H
Percentage of equity interest IR E R PTIS IR ET D
held by non-controlling interests 49% 49% 49.9% 49.9%
Current assets mEEE 31,084 21,173 22,604 19,689
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,743 1,396 - 4,650
Current liabilities mEAE (27,437) (19,274) (175) (2,634)
Net assets EERE 5,390 3,295 22,429 21,705
Carrying amount of FERER RS
non-controlling interests 2,641 1,615 11,192 10,831
For the year ended 31 March &HZE=F=+—-HLFE
Revenue Wz 23,544 10,325 1,627 1,077
Profit/(loss) for the year AEEZHF/(FE) 2,333 (1,640) 724 (1,544)
Total comprehensive income I ON 2,095 (1,846) 724 (1,544)
Profit/(loss) allocated to DEEEFERER 2
non-controlling interests wFl/ (EE) 1,143 (804) 361 (771)
Cash flows generated from/ MEREEIE/ (FTR)
(used in) operating activities ZEERE 5,908 (733) (862) 13
Cash flows generated from/ REZBME/(FR)
(used in) investing activities ZEEnE 5 61) (19,754) -
Cash flows generated from BETHMEZREERE
financing activities 345 1,316 23,250 -
Net cash inflows HERAFE 6,258 522 2,634 13
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HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. €iEMEER AAEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The
financial risks included market risk (including currency risk, and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of
directors. The overall objectives in managing financial risks
focus on securing the Group’s short to medium term cash
flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to engage in the trading of financial
instruments for speculative purposes.

37.1 Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

AEERBEREBBEFEREHRT
B AmAXSRER - ZFeREAR
BREMESER(SEE SRR &AM EE
)~ EERRMREERE

TREREERASEATRSE  LH
ExgZnafr - BECHAR I BR
BESHEREERMERRZBERT -
BRARETERAZESRE -

REBENEESRTANFAKEZ

BUR e

371 @I EER

EREMTANBERRZFEAS
BT

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FB T
Financial assets TRMEE
Loans and receivables B E W FRIE
- Rental deposits paid to a related  — Bt —&@EEA+
party HeEe 15,101 17,5654
— Trade receivables —EE 558 6,654 8,527
— Other receivables — H fth FE 5K IE 117,657 89,223
- Amounts due from related parties — — JE Yt E3E A + I8 15,622 18,677
— Amounts due from non-controlling — fEU FEIE AR HEZS X IB
interests = 11,601
- Pledged deposits —BEBER 72,240 55,686
- Restricted bank balance — ZPRHIIRIT A B 6,180 =
— Cash at banks and in hand —RITRFEES 192,103 157,164
425,557 358,432

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B A R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. tRiEREE R A R EF

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)

37.1 Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

37.1 &R T EERI (&)

fim

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FEIT
Financial liabilities cRBaE
Financial liabilities measured at NH R AGTEZ
amortised cost: TRAE
— Trade payables —ENES5E 19,931 27,444
— Accrued charges and other —JEETE AN EM
payables FEfTFRIE 43,079 25,521
— Amounts due to non-controlling — FE JEFE AR A a5 KB
interests 1,578 1,284
— Amounts due to related parties — BT REE A RIFIA 1,085 =
oo e 396,377 488,740
462,050 542,989

37.2 Foreign currency risk

37.2 ShEEE B

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Malaysia with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in HK$, EUR, CHF, RMB and US$. The
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily arises
from certain financial instruments including trade and
other receivables, rental deposits paid to a related party,
amount due from a related party, cash at banks and in
hand, trade and other payables and borrowings which
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities, including
EUR, CHF, RMB and US$. During both years, the
Group did not have foreign currency hedging policy but
management continuously monitors foreign exchange
exposure.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. s iRl EBER AR EHTTE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)
37.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 37.2 SR (E)
Foreign currency denominated financial assets and DONBEHEz eRBEERSRARE
financial liabilities, translated into HK$ at the prevailing R ERARZREFRTERE A5
closing rates at the end of the reporting period, are as JT  IREF|WOT -
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
Financial Financial Net Financial Financial Net
assets liabilities exposure assets liabilities exposure

THMEE SERE BERFE SREE 2 SRRE  RRFES
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TERT TERT T TAT TAT

EUR BT 116 (8,064) (7,948) 20 (2,673) (2,653)
CHF I A BB 121 - 121 168 (2,634) (2,466)
RMB ARE 30,222 - 30,222 83,376 - 83,376
uUs$ =TT 21,441 (143) 21,298 12,791 - 12,791
Sensitivity analysis R E T

As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does not expect BAETESTES - Bt - AEBETE
any significant movement in the HK$/US$ exchange rate. HIBE TR ETEERTS H IR E K&
No sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group’s financial B HNAATESERAE  ERETH
assets and financial liabilities denominated in US$ is BITERNIREH R 2 S EEN - K&
disclosed as in the opinion of directors of the Company, BUETIEZZREELRSRHEBEZ
such sensitivity analysis does not give additional value in W E DN EIRHZEIMEE - AmiL
view of insignificant movement in the US$/HK$ exchange EITE A ERRE DT o

rates at the end of the reporting period.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the TREMAKERARMEEE 2 %48 R
Group’s results for the years and retained profits in ERME BT HE T I A2 RAR
regards to a 5% (2016: 5%) appreciation in HK$ against S RFES% (T —7F : 5%) 28
EUR, CHF and RMB respectively. The 5% is the rate used RS © 5% IR EBEEABEINER R
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key RNEBRE IR 2 LR WA EIE B H N
management personnel and represents management’s WK B SR E BEE) v R (AT

best assessment of the possible change in foreign
exchange rates.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2# &£ E A R A 7 183
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HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

fim

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. tRiEREE R A R EF

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

37.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(%)

37.2 SRR ()

BRZ DT (B

Results for the year
and retained profits

TEEXBERFREEF
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—XF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FAET
EUR BT 305 111
CHF B4 REP (6) 102
RMB ARH (1,511) (3,771)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period
has been determined based on the assumed percentage
changes in foreign currency exchange rates taking place
at the beginning of the financial years and held constant
throughout the year.

A 5% depreciation in HK$ against EUR, CHF and RMB
would have the same magnitude on the Group’s results
for the year and retained profits but of opposite effect.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 3
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HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

37.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises primarily from bank deposits (Note 24)
and borrowings (Note 27). The Group has not used any
derivative contracts in order to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk. The Group has not formulated a policy
to manage the interest rate risk.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2017 to a
possible change in interest rates of +/-0.5% (2016: +/-
0.5%), with effect from the beginning of the year. The
calculations are based on the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities held at the end of the reporting
period. All other variables are held constant.

fim

37. cRBEREE R A REF
(&)

37.3 FEERE

NMERRESRTIAZAABEIRER
ERMSMNEREHMKE <Rk - N&E
BAEmERETERARITERME
24) RfeE (MiaE27) - REE W EE A
EATETASQE AN XER - &
KB IWEBIFTE RN AR 2 BOR

TRBAAEBHE_T—+F=A
ST —RAEFEZEEOH BN XY
&) +/-05%(ZF—~"F : +/-05% )BF
VEBZ BRERE o 5T E R EUAEBR
BEARBSE eREERSRBER
B IARMESEIFTTE -

Results for the year
and retained profits

AEEEBERREER
HK$’000
T
+0.5% -0.5%
2017 —E—tF 562 (562)
2016 —ET—REF 628 (628)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2# &£ E A R A 7
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. tRiEREE R A R EF
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)

fim

37.4 Credit risk 37.4 ERMK

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to its
customers and other counterparties in the ordinary
course of its operation.

The Group trades mainly with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the
result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. Further detailed exposure to credit risk on
trade receivables of the Group is disclosed in Note 22.

All the Group’s bank balances are deposited with major
banks located mainly in Hong Kong, Malaysia and
Mainland China. None of the financial assets of the Group
are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk
within the Group as at 31 March 2017 and 2016. The
Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Mainland China and Hong Kong as
at both year-ends.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 3
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. tRiEREE R A R {EF
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)

fim

37.5 Liquidity risk 37.5 REIMERK

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liability requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group manages the liquidity needs on a consolidated
basis by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long term financial liabilities as well as
forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day
business.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for the non-derivative financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period. When the creditor has
a choice of when the liability is settled, the liability is
included on the basis of the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Where the settlement of
the liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Group is committed to

pay.

The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities.

MEERREANEERERITES
MABETZEBRAR - NEBEX
XERENENESRALRERE
EERRBESREE ZREER
R AEEZBRRERBEEK
EEEEREAFNEEKTE - K
RNEREHEESRE -

AEERBERERRNSRAE
ZIEHEFRH N AR R 2 EHE
ERMARRL - UERaEEEEA

AT RARETESRAE
RBERARZ RIS VB HER -
HEBEABEEZABERE
B MIBRAERAEEAERNE
KERZHZFAHE - WERE
By MESN  AIBHERKOEE
AEEABN R ZEHEA -

ZAMUERAE 2 RBRBSR
ERKRE -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37.

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

37.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)

TREAREERAAEG

(&)

37.5 REERERR(E)

fim

Total Less than
contractual one year or
Carrying undiscounted repayable One year
amount cash flow on demand or above
BRRME  IR-FH
RESE RERBAE REREE —FIhUtL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
At 31 March 2017 R-B-tF
=ZA=t+-H
Non-derivative financial FTESRMIA:
instruments:
- Trade payables -ENBEHE 19,931 19,931 19,931 -
- Accrued charges and other —EsIE AR HAM
payables ERE 43,079 43,079 42,821 258
- Amounts due to - ERER
non-controlling interests B 1,578 1,578 1,578 -
- Amounts due to related -EABREALRE
parties 1,085 1,085 1,085 -
- Borrowings -5E 396,377 403,697 403,697 -
462,050 469,370 469,112 258
At 31 March 2016 RZZ—RF
=A=+—~H
Non-derivative financial FITESRMIA :
instruments:
- Trade payables -ENES3E 27,444 27,444 27,444 -
- Accrued charges and other — R ERAREAM
payables JFE 28 25,521 25,521 25,248 273
- Amount due to a —[ER—IEIEERES
non-controlling interest WIA 1,284 1,284 1,284 -
- Borrowings —BE 488,740 499,550 499,550 =
542,989 553,799 553,526 273

1 8 8 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 & B A& R A A
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. criRREEBER A REE

38.

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

37.6 Fair value measurements

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is
to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated
as borrowings, as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Total capital is calculated as total equity, as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. The

38.

(%)
37.6 AREFE
AEEeMmEENBENAREE

HEEERE  TEERRSET
IR EAREI R -

\tﬂﬂ pei

EAXER

AEEEAEETEARERELS
R 2 ERFREBEIERLE
AR R TS RAE IR BER AL

AEERBEERRZZERELER
BT BEAELAE -  REFHEE
REER  AEEHARBRRRIKMN Z
BB MRRFEEARKBEITHRD -
RAFE  AEEZBRF - BRHIEF

AEBERBENBEL X (AMEH AR
A éﬂii@%ﬁ)ﬁ*¢ B - ERARRIIRE
BitE - XEREE ﬁﬁ%iﬂlﬁiﬁi&%‘%ﬁﬂo
BRBBIVRERERAE - YHNER
BYBARRREA ZJK%IZEEE'@E

Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. BERBBHEREFE—EASEKELE -
2017 2016
—E—tF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT

Total debt BERHAE

Borrowings ERs 396,377 488,740
Total capital BB 1,787,827 1,083,726
Gearing ratio BERBELR 22.2% 451%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39. A2 7] Z Bk R sk
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RHB AR 2 S 10 _
Investment in an associate R—REBENR & E 660,075 -
660,085 -
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NGB 832,872 819,950
Other receivable H b [ W FRIR = 495
Cash at banks IRITIR® 11,824 351
844,696 820,796
Current liabilities nEBEE
Accrued charges and other payables FEH & A K H {th FE (S FR I8 2,313 1,523
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATBT B A R A 11,131 =
13,444 1,523
Net current assets REBEEZE 831,252 819,273
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERTEBAE 1,491,337 819,273
Net assets EEFRE 1,491,337 819,273
EQUITY R
Share capital (Note (a)) RE 2R (M 5E (a)) 8,282 5,959
Reserves (Note (b)) it (MEE () 1,483,055 813,314
Total equity A 1,491,337 819,273
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson R =—F—+F X B -+ \HLEE S E RIS
28 June 2017 and signed on its behalf by: R WHUNTEERAERRE
Tong Kai Lap Zheng Hao Jiang
BRI B ST
Director Director

EF EF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_ZT—+F=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2017

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39. AR Rz MR RIEE &)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Particulars and movement of the Company’s share capital for both
years have been set out in Note 29.

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

GER

(@ ARXFBRAAREFEZFBEREFT
BMHIEE29 o

(o) ARFZFHEHRZOT :

Share Capital ~ Contributed Exchange Other  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus* reserve reserve losses Total
RitEE BAGE BABH: NERE AR ZHEE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL AL TAL AL AL AL TAL
At 1 April 2015 R-5-1%MA-A 799,336 3,508 80,130 - - (65,720) 827,253
Loss and total comprehensive RERERRZENALE
income for the year - - - - - (13,939) (13,939)
At 31 March 2016 and RZE-AE=A=1-Bk
1 April 2016 “$-\ENA-A 799,335 3,508 80,130 - (69,659) 813,314
Loss for the year KEEER - - - = (19,159) (19,159)
Other comprehensive income Efp2EAA
- Exchange differences on translation - RE@IEK BN £E
of foreign operation - - - 5,874 - - 5,874
- Share of other comprehensive L N LN
income of an associate - - - (89) = (83)
Total comprehensive income REEZANAES
forthe year - - - 5874 (65) (19,159) (13370)
Acquistion of an associate Y- E R (3 19)
(Note 19) 645,683 - - - - 645,683
Acquistion of non-controling WS RER (113 35(a))
interest (Note 35(a)) 31,225 - - - - 31,225
Share of other reserve of an associate  AME—EHELAZMER - - - - 203 - 203
At 31 March 2017 R-B-tE=f=1-A 1,482,243 3,508 80,130 5,874 118 (88,818) 1,483,055

The contributed surplus of the Company consists of

(i) HK$51,286,000 being the difference between the
underlying consolidated net assets of Global Food Culture
Group Limited and its subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares which were issued under a group
reorganisation in 1997; and (i) those as described in the
sub-note headed “Contributed Surplus” under Note 30.

* RNE 2 AR BIE () Global Food
Culture Group Limited & EH KB AR 2
HHEGAEEEFEER —NNEFRE
SESHEFTZARRRMEE L ZE
51,286,000 7T + & (ii) AT EE 30 Al
ABR] FREFTlE -
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Financial Summary

RESULTS E 45
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E—=4 —T-NF —T-TfF “E-RF “E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAL FHT T FHRT
Revenue Wezs 3,015,555 3,161,848 2,605,701 2,376,904 2,781,222
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable "2 E#% A AFEMG
to owners of the Company REZHM/(F8) 66,304 18,951 (455,685) (32,328) 87,845
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T-=F —T-mF —T-hfF —E-RF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T FHT T TR
Total assets BEE 2,373,296 2,433,612 2,410,514 1,735,506 2,366,334
Total liabilities BEE (727,762) (842,163) (1,280,169 (651,780) (578,507)
1,645,534 1,591,449 1,130,345 1,083,726 1,787,827
Equity attributable to owners UNGIE N
of the Company 1,605,501 1,573,571 1,112,564 1,056,178 1,773,994
Non-controlling interests FEfE R 40,033 17,878 17,781 27,548 13,833
1,645,534 1,591,449 1,130,345 1,083,726 1,787,827
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